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·1· · · · · · ·Detroit, Michigan

·2· · · · · · ·Thursday, February 26, 2026 - 3:00 p.m.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · · *· · ·*· · ·*

·4· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you for coming to

·5· ·today's meeting.· Today is February 26th Board of Police

·6· ·Commissioners meeting.· I'd like to call the meeting to

·7· ·order and ask for the invocation who is going to be given

·8· ·by Jihad Taleb.· Did I say that right?

·9· · · · · · ·MR. TALEB:· Yes, thank you.

10· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you.

11· · · · · · ·MR. TALEB:· Peace be with you.· So, again, I'll

12· ·be reciting the prayers in Arabic, then I'll say the

13· ·translation in English.· In the name of God, the most

14· ·merciful, the most beneficent.· Oh God, you know what we

15· ·conceal and what we reveal.· Purify our intentions from

16· ·ego and self-interest.· Make our service to the people a

17· ·form of devotion to you.· And remind us that

18· ·responsibility is a trust, not a privilege.· Amen.

19· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you.

20· · · · · · ·Could we, Madam Secretary, have the roll call?

21· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Madam Chair, Commissioner

22· ·Dewaelsche.

23· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Present.

24· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Woods.

25· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· Present.



·1· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Boman.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. BOMAN:· Present.

·3· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Camille.

·4· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· Present.

·5· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Carter is excused.

·6· · · · · · ·Commissioner Ivey.

·7· · · · · · ·MS. IVEY:· Present.

·8· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Jones.

·9· · · · · · ·MR. JONES:· Present.

10· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Morris.

11· · · · · · ·MR. MORRIS:· Present.

12· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Watts.

13· · · · · · ·MS. WATTS:· Here.

14· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· And Commissioner Williams.

15· · · · · · ·MR. WILLIAMS:· Present.

16· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Nine present, Madam Chair.

17· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you, Madam

18· ·Secretary.· At this time, I'd like to ask if there's a

19· ·motion to approve February 26th agenda, today's agenda.

20· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· So moved.

21· · · · · · ·MR. JONES:· Support.

22· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· It's been moved by Commissioner

23· ·Woods, supported by Commissioner Jones.· Is there any

24· ·discussion?· All in favor indicate by saying aye.

25· · · · · · ·THE BOARD:· Aye.



·1· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Opposed?· The motion

·2· ·carries.· Thank you.

·3· · · · · · ·Next, can I get a motion to approve the minutes

·4· ·of February 19th, 2026?

·5· · · · · · ·MR. JONES:· So moved, Madam Chair.

·6· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· Support.

·7· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· It's been moved by

·8· ·Commissioner Jones, supported by Commissioner Woods.· Is

·9· ·there any discussion?· All in favor indicate by saying

10· ·aye.

11· · · · · · ·THE BOARD:· Aye.

12· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Opposed?· The motion

13· ·carries.· Thank you.

14· · · · · · ·And now, can I get a motion to approve closed

15· ·session minutes of February 19th, 2026, regarding Sergeant

16· ·Anthony Williams.

17· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Madam Chair, your mic.

18· · · · · · ·Put your mic --

19· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Couldn't hear me?

20· · · · · · ·Yeah, I feel like it's not working right.

21· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Okay.· Thank you.

22· · · · · · ·Hers is working.

23· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Okay.· Let me try that

24· ·again.· A motion to approve the closed session minutes for

25· ·February 19th, 2026, regarding Sergeant Anthony Williams.



·1· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· So moved.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. JONES:· Support.

·3· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· It's been moved by

·4· ·Commissioner Woods, supported by Commissioner Jones.· Is

·5· ·there any discussion?· All in favor indicate by saying

·6· ·aye.

·7· · · · · · ·THE BOARD:· Aye.

·8· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Opposed?· The motion

·9· ·carries.

10· · · · · · ·And now, can I get a motion to approve the

11· ·closed session minutes for February 19th, 2026, regarding

12· ·Sergeant Denise Wallet.

13· · · · · · ·MR. BOMAN:· So moved.

14· · · · · · ·MR. WILLIAMS:· Seconded.

15· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· I'm sorry.· Okay.

16· ·Commissioner Boman made the motion.· And it's seconded by

17· ·Commissioner Williams.· Is there any discussion?· All

18· ·those in favor indicate by saying aye.

19· · · · · · ·THE BOARD:· Aye.

20· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Opposed?· The motion

21· ·carries.· Thank you.· And then I also need a motion to

22· ·approve the closed session minutes of February 19th for

23· ·Police Officer James Corsi.

24· · · · · · ·MR. JONES:· So moved, Madam Chair.

25· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Commissioner Jones made



·1· ·the motion.

·2· · · · · · ·MS. IVEY:· Support.

·3· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Support by Commissioner

·4· ·Ivey.· Any discussion?· All in favor indicate by saying

·5· ·aye.

·6· · · · · · ·THE BOARD:· Aye.

·7· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Opposed?· The motion

·8· ·carries.· Thank you.· At this time, Madam Secretary, could

·9· ·we have introduction of the staff, Chief of Police staff,

10· ·elected officials and representatives, and community

11· ·leaders.

12· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Madam Chair, through the Chair,

13· ·present as of this time and registered are the following.

14· ·Corporate Counsel Conrad Mallett, Jonya Underwood, Drew

15· ·Fries, Felicia Tyson, Teresa Blossom, Mary Barber, Candace

16· ·Hayes, Armecia Joshua, Deora Mathis, Supervising OCI

17· ·Investigator Hiller, Katrina Petillo, DPD HR Director.

18· ·Our interpreters today are Rebecca Stuckless and Angelique

19· ·Taylor.· Court Reporter Hanson Reporting, Enrique Jackson

20· ·for Audiovisual, Charles Henry for Media Services, and

21· ·Deputy Chief Michael Parish is here for the Office of

22· ·Chief of Police.

23· · · · · · ·Marie Overholm, Fridja Butler, Lieutenant Mark

24· ·Young.· I'm sorry, I do not see him at this time.· DPOA

25· ·Vice President Ron Thomas is here.· Former Police



·1· ·Commissioner William Davis is on Zoom together with; I

·2· ·think we have one or two others on Zoom.

·3· · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Board Parliamentarian Frances

·4· ·Jackson.

·5· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Thank you, Dr. Jackson.· I think

·6· ·that's complete who's registered at this time, Madam

·7· ·Chair.

·8· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you, Madam

·9· ·Secretary.· And, at this time, we'll go to the Chief of

10· ·Police report given by Deputy Chief Michael Parish.

11· · · · · · ·MR. PARISH:· Good afternoon, Board.

12· · · · · · ·THE BOARD:· Good afternoon.

13· · · · · · ·MR. PARISH:· Beginning with crime data, we are

14· ·up 15 percent in homicides.· But let me break down the

15· ·numbers for you.· This time last year, we were at 20

16· ·homicides year to date.· This time this year, we're at 23.

17· ·So, it's 15 percent, but it's an increase of three

18· ·homicides.

19· · · · · · ·For non-fatal shootings, we are down 32 percent.

20· ·For robberies, we are down 2 percent.· For total Part 1

21· ·violent crimes, we are up 4 percent.· For carjackings, we

22· ·are down 23 percent.

23· · · · · · ·There's a few high visibility case closures I'd

24· ·like to talk about.· There were charges issued in a fatal

25· ·crash that killed a 9-year-old girl recently.· On Friday,



·1· ·February 20th, at approximately 9:23 p.m., the defendant

·2· ·is suspected of driving recklessly at a high rate of speed

·3· ·on the Southfield Freeway Service Drive, near Tireman,

·4· ·when he disregarded a traffic light and struck the

·5· ·passenger side of the victim's vehicle.· Medics arrived on

·6· ·the scene and transported the two victims, a 53-year-old

·7· ·woman and a 9-year-old girl, to a local hospital.

·8· ·Regrettably, the girl succumbed to her injuries and was

·9· ·pronounced dead a short time later.· Following an

10· ·investigation by the Detroit Police Department, the Wayne

11· ·County Prosecutor's Office charged the defendant with

12· ·reckless driving causing death, reckless driving causing

13· ·serious impairment, driving while license is suspended,

14· ·revoked, or denied causing death, and driving while

15· ·license is suspended, revoked, or denied causing serious

16· ·impairment.

17· · · · · · ·Turning to another incident, this is a fatal

18· ·crash that resulted in the death of a couple of

19· ·individuals, sadly.· On Sunday, February 22nd at

20· ·approximately 10:15 a.m., Detroit police officers were

21· ·dispatched to a warehouse in the 6000 block of Rosa Parks

22· ·Boulevard for a reported single-motor vehicle accident.

23· ·Officers observed the defendant's vehicle crashed with

24· ·both victims, a 60-year-old man and a 57-year-old woman

25· ·trapped inside and unresponsive.· Medics pronounced both



·1· ·victims deceased.

·2· · · · · · ·It is suspected that the defendant was driving

·3· ·recklessly at a high rate of speed when he lost control of

·4· ·his vehicle and crashed into the building, fatally

·5· ·injuring all of the victims inside.· The defendant fled

·6· ·from the scene on foot but was arrested a short time

·7· ·later.· Following an investigation by the Detroit Police

·8· ·Department, the Wayne County Prosecutor's Office charged

·9· ·the defendant with two counts of second-degree murder, one

10· ·count of reckless driving causing death, and one count of

11· ·leaving the scene of an at-fault-accident causing death.

12· ·He was arraigned at the 36th District Court and received a

13· ·$500,000.00 cash surety bond.

14· · · · · · ·There was an arrest made in kidnapping and a

15· ·domestic violence incident.· On Wednesday, February 18th,

16· ·2026, the 6th Precinct Special Operations officers

17· ·arrested a male wanted in connection with a kidnapping and

18· ·a domestic violence incident that occurred in August 2025.

19· ·The suspect showed up at the location and began damaging

20· ·the victim's vehicle.· When the victim came outside, the

21· ·suspect began assaulting her.· The suspect forced the

22· ·victim into her vehicle and made her drive back to his

23· ·home.· Officers arrived at that location and negotiated

24· ·with the suspect to let the victim go.· The victim was

25· ·allowed to leave the home and the suspect fled.



·1· · · · · · ·As a result, a non-custody warrant was prepared,

·2· ·which ultimately resulted in the arrest I just mentioned.

·3· ·Great work to the officers involved from the 6th Precinct.

·4· ·We have one male charged federally after shot-spotter

·5· ·alert investigations.· On Wednesday, February 25th, Metro

·6· ·Detroit News posted a Detroit man facing federal charges

·7· ·for possessing a gun with a Glock switch after Detroit

·8· ·police officers responded to two shot-spotter alerts in

·9· ·the 9th Precinct.· This incident occurred in June of 2025.

10· ·After the first shot-spotter alert, officers responded to

11· ·the scene of the shooting where the victim's vehicle was

12· ·shot up.· The victim provided two vehicle descriptions to

13· ·the officers.

14· · · · · · ·Minutes later, the officers responded to another

15· ·shot-spotter alert in the area and recovered several

16· ·casings, which were entered into the NIBIN system.· That

17· ·night, officers located one of the vehicles wanted in

18· ·connection with the shot-up vehicle and attempted a

19· ·traffic stop.· Suspects' flood and air support tracked the

20· ·vehicle.· Officers located four suspects in that area and

21· ·a gun where one of these suspects was hiding.

22· ·Investigators then reviewed the suspect's social media and

23· ·saw him posting with the gun found next to him.· The shell

24· ·casings from the second shot-spotter alert were also

25· ·linked to the gun.· Great work, again, by our Detroit



·1· ·police officers and our federal partners for taking the

·2· ·suspect into custody.

·3· · · · · · ·Moving to traffic enforcement operations.· From

·4· ·February 15th to the 21st, traffic enforcement conducted

·5· ·operations in the 8th, 9th, 10th, and 11th precincts.

·6· ·Officers made a total of 341 stops, issued 766 moving

·7· ·violations, and 118 tickets of those for speeding.· For

·8· ·narcotics enforcement, for the week ending February 22nd,

·9· ·the narcotics unit conducted several search warrants.· The

10· ·officers made two felony arrests recovering three guns and

11· ·confiscating cocaine, fentanyl, marijuana, and pills.

12· · · · · · ·As for a community update, on Saturday, March

13· ·7th, the Detroit Police Department will be hosting a

14· ·procedural justice and police legitimacy forum to help

15· ·strengthen the relationship between policing and the needs

16· ·of the community.· Community members are encouraged to

17· ·voice their concerns and learn the procedures police use

18· ·to accomplish their duties.· That event will be hosted by

19· ·Assistant Chief Eric Ewing.· A community meeting will be

20· ·held at the SAY Detroit Play Center located at 19320 Van

21· ·Dyke Avenue, Detroit, Michigan, starting at 9:00 a.m.· To

22· ·register, please contact Sergeant Justin Hearn at (313)

23· ·900-9377.· Additionally, there were no officers that were

24· ·critically injured over the past week.· So that concludes

25· ·the chief's report.



·1· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you, DC.

·2· · · · · · ·Any questions?

·3· · · · · · ·MR. BOMAN:· Yeah, here, I have one.

·4· ·Thank you, Chair.· And, I'm sorry, I'm just trying to open

·5· ·my notes that I've been taking here.· Okay.· I had a

·6· ·couple questions, yeah.· First of all, and this regards

·7· ·our meeting that we had last week, at last week's meeting,

·8· ·the board had voted unanimously to adopt the chief's

·9· ·recommendations to change Sergeant Wallet's status to

10· ·administrative leave without pay but with medical benefits

11· ·for 30 days.· As the board and the department continues to

12· ·explore the matter, can the department bring

13· · · · · · ·(Name redacted from transcript.)

14· ·to the board, so we can ask them some questions?

15· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· Through the Chair, I would refer

16· ·that to the Corporation Counsel to see if that -- we don't

17· ·want to put names out there if there's an investigation,

18· ·whatever, and things of that nature.

19· · · · · · ·MR. BOMAN:· Would it require subpoena powers?

20· · · · · · ·CORPORATE COUNSEL MALLET:· So, through the

21· ·Chair, there is ongoing litigation in Wayne County Circuit

22· ·Court right now.· This particular lieutenant's name --

23· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· I don't think that's

24· ·working because we can't --

25· · · · · · ·CORPORATE COUNSEL MALLET:· There is ongoing



·1· ·litigation, Madam Chairperson.· I have not seen this

·2· ·particular lieutenant's name on the witness list.

·3· ·Commissioner Boman, this particular litigation, I don't

·4· ·think, is going to be particularly protracted.· It is a

·5· ·temporary restraining order.· If you could modify your

·6· ·request so that after this litigation has been concluded

·7· ·in the Wayne County Circuit Court, then we would be able

·8· ·to make the request for that person to come forward.  I

·9· ·think unimpeded, at least by the litigation.· At that

10· ·point, I am sure Deputy Chief Parish, there is an ongoing

11· ·internal affairs investigation, or has that been

12· ·completed?

13· · · · · · ·MR. PARISH:· No, there are still two pending

14· ·investigations, one for each member that was discussed,

15· ·and the lieutenant's role will likely be a factor in those

16· ·investigations.

17· · · · · · ·MR. BOMAN:· So not likely to be protracted,

18· ·through the Chair, may I continue?· So, by protract, not

19· ·protracted, how long are you talking about?

20· · · · · · ·CORPORATE COUNSEL MALLET:· So, for the Wayne

21· ·County Circuit Court litigation, I would say that would be

22· ·done in a week, because it's a temporary restraining

23· ·order.· So, it's not like there's going to be a trial.

24· ·Either it's going to be granted or it's not.· It will

25· ·depend on how soon the judge wants to make a decision



·1· ·whether or not to grant the order or not.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. BOMAN:· I can revisit this in a week then.

·3· · · · · · ·Then I had a follow-up, through the Chair, if I

·4· ·may.

·5· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Go ahead.

·6· · · · · · ·MR. BOMAN:· At last week's meeting, the board

·7· ·voted unanimous, I know it sounds like I'm repeating

·8· ·myself, but I'm talking about now another person.· At last

·9· ·week's meeting, the board voted unanimously to adopt the

10· ·chief's recommendations to change Officer Corsi's status

11· ·to administrative leave without pay but with medical

12· ·benefits for 30 days.· As the board and the department

13· ·continues to explore that matter, can the chief confirm

14· ·that during these 30 days DPD is continuing this

15· ·investigation and, if appropriate, will pursue further

16· ·discipline upon the investigator's conclusion based upon

17· ·whether or not it's required?

18· · · · · · ·MR. PARISH:· I can confirm that the department

19· ·is investigating as of this time.· Both situations are the

20· ·subject of an ongoing investigation, and proper action

21· ·will be taken consistent with what the chief has expressed

22· ·at that time.

23· · · · · · ·MR. BOMAN:· So, when it's done, will we be

24· ·informed of what disciplinary actions, if any, would be

25· ·applied?



·1· · · · · · ·MR. PARISH:· Oh, absolutely.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. BOMAN:· Okay.· Thank you.

·3· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you.

·4· · · · · · ·Any other questions for the chief?

·5· · · · · · ·Go ahead.

·6· · · · · · ·MR. MORRIS:· DC Parish, can you furnish to the

·7· ·board, a grid that lists all of the majority of the major

·8· ·policy violations, along with the disciplinary actions for

·9· ·each individual policy that the department usually takes

10· ·against personnel?

11· · · · · · ·MR. PARISH:· The personnel that Commissioner

12· ·Boman was referring to or personnel, in general?

13· · · · · · ·MR. JONES:· So, like, example, if we come across

14· ·there's an OCI investigation and there's a complaint

15· ·sustained of an officer turning off their body camera.

16· ·So, there's some sort of grid that says, hey, when an

17· ·officer does this violation, when this violation is

18· ·committed, this is the consequences for that.· Do you have

19· ·a grid with the violations, along with the disciplinary

20· ·action that the department usually takes for each one?

21· · · · · · ·MR. PARISH:· I understand the question,

22· ·Commissioner.· Thank you.· We do have a disciplinary

23· ·matrix, and that I can certainly share with you.· The only

24· ·thing I would advise the board on is that the union has

25· ·not agreed to the application of this disciplinary matrix,



·1· ·so it is really just a tool that we use.· Understanding

·2· ·the limitation, we will happily share it with you.

·3· · · · · · ·MR. MORRIS:· Okay.· All right.

·4· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you.

·5· · · · · · ·Any other questions?· Okay.· Hearing none.

·6· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· Madam Chair?

·7· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Go ahead.

·8· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· I do have a couple.

·9· · · · · · ·Thank you so much.

10· · · · · · ·Thank you, Chief, for the report, and I was glad

11· ·to see in the administrative messages the duty to

12· ·intervene reminder that went out to all the DPD members,

13· ·so thank you so much for doing that.· A couple items I

14· ·wanted to just check in on here.· So, I'm going to take us

15· ·back a little bit to 2024 Sherman Lee Butler, where,

16· ·during an eviction, DPD officers tased him and the bailiff

17· ·shot him multiple times.· DPD released some body-worn

18· ·camera footage about five months later regarding that, and

19· ·there were seven DPD members cited in the OCI policy

20· ·review of this incident.· Has there been a follow-up to

21· ·close a loop with the public on DPD's investigative

22· ·findings, any accountability measures, and any remediation

23· ·for the department or individual officers to ensure a

24· ·tragedy like this doesn't happen again?

25· · · · · · ·MR. PARISH:· Absolutely.· Speaking first to the



·1· ·officers, charges have been issued.· When I say charges,

·2· ·administrative charges have been issued.· In that matter,

·3· ·disciplinary did forward those to me.· They have been

·4· ·issued but not yet served upon the officers just yet, so

·5· ·discipline is forthcoming against at least some of the

·6· ·officers involved and because of discipline, I'll keep

·7· ·their names out of the public record for now.· As I

·8· ·believe you're aware, Commissioner, we did have a very

·9· ·good meeting between OCI and DPD where we discussed the

10· ·situation from both units' perspective, and that did lead

11· ·to very informed conversation when we reviewed our

12· ·uniformed patrol directive.· So, I do believe that proper

13· ·measures have been taken into place and appropriate

14· ·discipline is being issued.

15· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· Thank you, Chief.· So, when the

16· ·discipline is actually issued for these officers, will the

17· ·board be provided with an update on what the outcome was,

18· ·like, what policies were violated?

19· · · · · · ·MR. PARISH:· Absolutely.

20· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· Okay.· Thank you so much.

21· · · · · · ·Madam Chair, I just have a couple more items

22· ·here as well.· So, in addition, we know it's been an

23· ·ongoing conversation where the public has been, some

24· ·members of the public have been demanding that DPD not

25· ·collaborate with ICE, and in response, DPD has repeatedly



·1· ·communicated that DPD doesn't do immigration enforcement.

·2· ·We all know that the matter is not quite that simple as a

·3· ·simple statement like that.· So, to maintain the public's

·4· ·trust in DPD, you know, clarity is very important.· So, is

·5· ·it possible to have a presentation at one of our meetings

·6· ·that explains the application of the bias-based policing

·7· ·policy, along with any city policies, training,

·8· ·administrative messages, and desk-level procedures related

·9· ·to DPD interacting with immigration agencies, along with

10· ·some examples of what's acceptable and not acceptable for

11· ·the benefit of the public?

12· · · · · · ·MR. PARISH:· I think that's a great idea and

13· ·very timely, and if Board Secretary gives me the date, we

14· ·will make sure that we have a presentation ready.

15· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· Okay.· Thank you so much.

16· · · · · · ·That's all I have.

17· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you.

18· · · · · · ·Any other Commissioners?

19· · · · · · ·MS. WATTS:· Yeah, just to add on that point.

20· ·When you do do that, could you also provide any kind of

21· ·policy or training that you do for anyone, related to any

22· ·type of profile?

23· · · · · · ·MR. PARISH:· Absolutely, yes.· Absolutely.

24· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Any other comments or

25· ·questions for the chief?· Hearing none.· Thank you, Chief,



·1· ·for your report.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. PARISH:· Thank you.

·3· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· We'll go next to oral

·4· ·communications and public comments.· Remember that

·5· ·comments are limited to two minutes.· Inappropriate

·6· ·language and comments will not be tolerated and may delay

·7· ·TV broadcasts and video posts.

·8· · · · · · ·Could we have our first speaker, please?

·9· · · · · · ·MS. UNDERWOOD:· Yes, Madam Chair.· The first

10· ·three speakers will be Ms. Alvina Gatson, Vanessa Rayna,

11· ·and Jimmy McCarroll.· Please state your name for the

12· ·record.

13· · · · · · ·MS. GATSON:· Alvina Gatson.

14· · · · · · ·Good afternoon, my name is Alvina Gatson.

15· ·I'm an innocent, God-fearing, law-abiding citizen.

16· ·Despite that fact, I live in fear daily for my personal

17· ·safety and my very life itself at the hands of rogue,

18· ·undercover police detectives who, due to a false narrative

19· ·the police created, are surveilling me and watching my

20· ·every move, even inside my apartment.· They terrorize me

21· ·every day through harassment and intimidation tactics.  I

22· ·have so much mounting evidence regarding this.

23· · · · · · ·One example is causing my cell phone battery to

24· ·suddenly deplete down to 0 percent, and the battery saver

25· ·option becoming unavailable.· So, I have no cell phone



·1· ·service for days at a time.· They even did this on

·2· ·Christmas Day.· What if I needed to call 911?

·3· · · · · · ·Much more serious than that, they have set traps

·4· ·for me to fall and hurt myself.· They know I was diagnosed

·5· ·a few months ago with osteoarthritis of the spine.· So,

·6· ·they set a trap for me to injure myself, to get a

·7· ·concussion, a broken neck, or broken ribs, or even death.

·8· ·The motive?· To silence me.· To prevent me from attending

·9· ·these BOPC meetings virtually or in person and file a

10· ·complaint against them.

11· · · · · · ·That is attempted murder.· And I was here four

12· ·months ago, on October 23rd, 2025.· Three OCI complaints

13· ·were filed.· Has the attempted murder case been forwarded

14· ·to Internal Affairs?

15· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you.

16· · · · · · ·Next speaker.

17· · · · · · ·Oh, I'm sorry.· Go ahead, Commissioner Boman.

18· · · · · · ·MR. BOMAN:· Yeah, I don't know if I can ask a

19· ·question to a community after comments.· I can?

20· · · · · · ·Okay.· I'm turning off the phone.

21· · · · · · ·I was just curious about something.

22· · · · · · ·MS. UNDERWOOD:· Ms. Gatson, could you come back

23· ·to the mic, please?

24· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· If you're willing.

25· · · · · · ·MR. BOMAN:· Obviously you're not obligated to



·1· ·say anymore.· I'm wondering what happened when you had the

·2· ·injury that looked like foul play.· You said something

·3· ·looked like there was something --

·4· · · · · · ·MS. GATSON:· No, I was diagnosed with

·5· ·osteoarthritis of the spine.· That doesn't have anything

·6· ·to do with the police.· But what I'm saying is they set --

·7· ·they are surveilling me, even though I'm not a criminal.

·8· ·And they're at my apartment building.· They have a hacker

·9· ·who is assigned to me, who hacks into all of my online

10· ·accounts, depleting information that is incriminating.

11· ·I'm sorry, deleting information that is incriminating to

12· ·the Detroit police.

13· · · · · · ·But what I'm saying is they're watching my every

14· ·move.· And they are stationed.· There are undercover

15· ·officers, detectives, stationed at my apartment building.

16· ·And they watch me from inside of my apartment on hidden

17· ·camera.· They've even watched me showering.

18· · · · · · ·MR. BOWMAN:· Through the Chair, I have a

19· ·similar question.· I'm wondering what has alerted you to

20· ·that this is happening?· I mean, what things reveal that

21· ·you have been hacked, and why is it evident to you that

22· ·the hackers are connected with the DPD?

23· · · · · · ·MS. GATSON:· There are so many things.

24· · · · · · ·I'm on my laptop daily and --

25· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· Through the Chair -- excuse me,



·1· ·finish your answer and then --

·2· · · · · · ·MS. GATSON:· Well, I had to start documenting it

·3· ·because I wasn't aware at first why are people, random

·4· ·people, taking my picture as I walk down the street and

·5· ·things of this nature.· And I was in a homeless shelter a

·6· ·few years ago, and I was friends with another resident

·7· ·there.· And her landlord called me like a year later.· We

·8· ·weren't even friends anymore.· And he asked me if I knew

·9· ·of her whereabouts because she had left her belongings

10· ·after her lease ended, and she never came to get them back

11· ·after a month.· That was very alarming to me.· And

12· ·although I hadn't spoken with her in over a year and we

13· ·weren't friends anymore, that got my attention.

14· · · · · · ·So, I was very concerned, and I let the landlord

15· ·know we're not friends.· I haven't spoken with her.  I

16· ·don't know of her whereabouts.· But I had to pray about

17· ·it.· I'm a Christian.· I had to ask the Lord why are

18· ·people taking my pictures.

19· · · · · · ·And then putting two and two together, the

20· ·police think I have something to do with if something has

21· ·happened to her, which obviously something must have

22· ·happened.· But I'm not a criminal.· I don't commit crimes.

23· ·I'm afraid of guns.

24· · · · · · ·And, I have, it's hard for me to articulate

25· ·everything that I've been through being on the spot like



·1· ·this, but I have created a document.· I have been keeping

·2· ·notes because I have to.· This sounds crazy, and it

·3· ·should.· And I'm the one that's going through it.

·4· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Okay, ma'am.

·5· · · · · · ·Let -- did that answer any of your questions?

·6· · · · · · ·MR. BOMAN:· I have no further --

·7· · · · · · ·MS. GATSON:· But no.· I did not answer your

·8· ·specific question.· I do apologize.

·9· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Okay.· That's all

10· ·right.· We just need to have Commissioner --

11· · · · · · ·MS. GATSON:· I put in three OCI reports on --

12· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· Excuse me, ma'am.· OCI would give

13· ·you a response to their findings.· When it comes to

14· ·attempted murder, we have no jurisdiction to investigate

15· ·any type of attempted murders, you know.· And OCI would

16· ·give you a response as to anything else.· So that's, we

17· ·have to go to the next question, though.

18· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· Madam Chair.

19· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Okay.· Go ahead.

20· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· We have a representative in the

21· ·room from OCI, though.· Can we have them just follow up

22· ·with her on the status of her cases.

23· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Yes.

24· · · · · · ·Do we have someone here from OCI?· Seven.

25· · · · · · ·MS. GATSON:· Because that was four months ago.



·1· · · · · · ·I haven't heard anything.

·2· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Could you also spend

·3· ·some time getting more information?· I guess they're not

·4· ·hearing us.· All right.· Now we can go to our next

·5· ·speaker, please.

·6· · · · · · ·MS. RAYNA:· Hello.· My name is Vanessa Rayna,

·7· ·and I'm just going to read a little note that I was

·8· ·writing that I wanted to turn into maybe the police chief

·9· ·or someone.· And it sounds very bizarre, what she just

10· ·said.· But I've experienced some things myself, so it may

11· ·be related.

12· · · · · · ·And, I wrote this letter, and it says, when this

13· ·letter reaches you; I was hoping to turn it into a police

14· ·chief or something.· I hope that all is well with you and

15· ·yours.· I am Vanessa Rayna, the mother and legal guardian

16· ·of Amanda Prowl Smith, an inmate at 5301 Russell Street,

17· ·Detroit, Michigan.· And her inmate number is there.· I'm

18· ·writing to inform you that although funds are available

19· ·for Amanda to make phone calls, she's often unable to, as

20· ·her tablet, needed to place calls, isn't always working

21· ·properly.· When I call, inmate information number and

22· ·others, including yours, the police chief, I get a

23· ·recording that states the mailbox of the person you are

24· ·calling is full.· It is important to know that Amanda, my

25· ·daughter, should be able to speak to people that love and



·1· ·uplift her to keep her mental health up.

·2· · · · · · ·Amanda was exposed to harmful toxins as an

·3· ·infant and black toxic mold later as a little girl.· She

·4· ·was the kindest, most intelligent, funniest child.· As she

·5· ·grew older, the exposures began to cause some sort of

·6· ·brain disturbance that expressed itself as mental illness

·7· ·of sorts.· I'm nervous, I didn't expect to come here

·8· ·today.· Just, hold on a second, please, I can't even read

·9· ·this paper right.· Okay.

10· · · · · · ·This has been such an unfortunate situation that

11· ·has devastated her life, the lives of her children, and

12· ·mine as well.· Amanda did not deserve that to happen to

13· ·her as a baby, and it's very sad.· Therefore, I ask and

14· ·pray that you will rectify the issues.· I am also unable

15· ·to set up an account in order to visit, send money.

16· ·Someone literally has to come to the facility to add funds

17· ·for her.

18· · · · · · ·Thank you for understanding.· I just want to say

19· ·that she has money on her books.· She used to call every

20· ·day.· Now she can't call.· I haven't talked to her or seen

21· ·her in months.

22· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· Through the Chair, that has nothing

23· ·to do with the Detroit Police Department or the Board of

24· ·Police Commission.· That's a Wayne County Jail issue.· And

25· ·so that 5301 Russell is the Wayne County Jail.· Has no



·1· ·jurisdiction over Detroit in no shape, form, or fashion.

·2· ·So, you can direct it to the Wayne County Sheriff's

·3· ·Department to be able to get some answers there, or you

·4· ·could probably call them or go up there.

·5· · · · · · ·MS. RAYNA:· I have, and I will continue, but I

·6· ·have experienced some things similar to the lady.· That's

·7· ·a long story, because I'm Oakland County.· But I just hope

·8· ·and pray that I can see or speak to my daughter.· And she

·9· ·has money on her books and everything, but she hasn't.

10· ·She can't call me or anything, and I can't see her.

11· ·Because I can't even set up the account.· It seems to be

12· ·blocked when I try to send --

13· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· If you give our staff a contact

14· ·information, I'll see what I can do to help make contact

15· ·for you there.· I know a couple people over that way.

16· ·And, if I can connect with someone, I can see if she can

17· ·call you or something.

18· · · · · · ·MS. RAYNA:· Okay.· And what is your name, sir?

19· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· Commissioner Woods.

20· · · · · · ·MR. RAYNA:· Woods.· Okay.

21· · · · · · ·Thank you very much.

22· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· You are out of order, sir.

23· · · · · · ·MS. UNDERWOOD:· Mr. Jimmy McCaroll.

24· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Next speaker.

25· · · · · · ·MR. MCCAROLL:· Good afternoon.



·1· · · · · · ·THE BOARD:· Good afternoon.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. MCCARROLL:· I attended these meetings twice,

·3· ·about a month ago.· I was trying to get this complaint

·4· ·resolved before the deadline.· I got the letter; I

·5· ·received last Monday.· Anyway, this happened in 2024.

·6· ·This was a raid to my home.· Y'all took my guns.· I got

·7· ·served at the precinct.

·8· · · · · · ·I finally found out the officer that took my

·9· ·complaint, because I came down there so frustrated that he

10· ·said, calm down, Mr. McCarroll.· You're on body cam.  I

11· ·need you to be on body cam.· When he was taking my

12· ·complaint, the team, the officer that came in, while he

13· ·was taking my complaint, he called one of the officers in

14· ·there and said, did y'all do a raid on Tacoma Street on

15· ·14205 there?· He said, yeah, about an hour ago.

16· · · · · · ·So, I turned my head back, and he saw it was me.

17· ·He said, I'll be right back, Mr. McCarroll.· I'm about to

18· ·bring you your warrant now.· I didn't receive it at the

19· ·house.· It wasn't just DP; it wasn't just the Detroit

20· ·Police Department.· I had a good relationship with the 9th

21· ·for a long time.

22· · · · · · ·I got a video on my phone, if y'all are willing

23· ·to see it.· You can see your department actions.· Not only

24· ·did they tear my house up and took my guns, because if I

25· ·do that to anybody else in the community, it'd be a crime



·1· ·on my behalf.· Like I said, my complaint was denied.  I

·2· ·contacted FOIA, Freedom of Information Act, emailed them

·3· ·twice.· Not just the DPS, the Michigan State Police

·4· ·Department, they was there also, and the Feds too.

·5· · · · · · ·They didn't give me no -- I can't see the

·6· ·footage.· But I got my own footage, because I have nosy

·7· ·neighbors.· I got it in my phone today, if you're willing

·8· ·to see it.· But it did happen, and my house was destroyed.

·9· ·My property was destroyed.· Y'all took my weapons from me.

10· ·I've been trying to get this back for two years.· So why

11· ·is my complaint ain't honored?

12· · · · · · ·Y'all wouldn't have my weapons if you didn't

13· ·come in my home.· Only thing I requested was OCI

14· ·investigator, just review the footage and see for

15· ·yourself.· Because I have my own camera.· But you know

16· ·what they did?· They snatched it off my house and threw it

17· ·in the grass.

18· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you.

19· · · · · · ·DC, is there someone that maybe can follow up

20· ·with that?

21· · · · · · ·MR. MCCAROLL:· Ms. Holmes, Jessica Hunter.

22· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Okay.· Your time is up,

23· ·sir.· We're going to see if we can get someone to speak

24· ·with you.

25· · · · · · ·MR. MCCAROLL:· Okay.



·1· · · · · · ·Can I get my guns back, please?

·2· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· We're going to see what

·3· ·we can do.

·4· · · · · · ·MR. WILLIAMS:· Could I have one of the officers

·5· ·take his full name and phone number and make sure that it

·6· ·is looked into if it already has not been resolved.

·7· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· All right.· Thank you.

·8· · · · · · ·Next speaker.

·9· · · · · · ·MS. UNDERWOOD:· Our next three speakers will be

10· ·Ms. Williams, Ronald Foster, and Mr. Smith.· Then we'll go

11· ·into Zoom.

12· · · · · · ·MS. WILLIAMS:· Two years ago, I was raped.· But

13· ·see, the thing about this is, before the police came out

14· ·from the 8th Precinct to Providence Hospital, my statement

15· ·had already been taken from an officer who used to be on

16· ·the Detroit Police Department.· He said, Ms. Williams, if

17· ·they don't get this stuff together, you can sue they

18· ·effing butt.· He said, because I'm the first one to make

19· ·this report.· They came out and had cameras on, first of

20· ·all.· But the bottom line is, I sit up here and I listen

21· ·to this.· These are facts.

22· · · · · · ·Cheryl Hall, LaShonda Houston, are police

23· ·officers.· Chauncey Gardner is on the Detroit Police

24· ·Department.· Facts.· So, I live at 628 Delaware, where ex-

25· ·offenders live.· Like I said, if the FBI, Ms. Kim Worthy,



·1· ·want to know where they at, 628 Delaware.· They start

·2· ·coming out in the morning, at 3:00 in the morning.· They

·3· ·go to be an officer with these fake names.

·4· · · · · · ·And there's other properties, which they moved

·5· ·Cheryl on 1440.· But check this out.· I kept on trying to

·6· ·figure out how they coming into my apartment.· I don't get

·7· ·how anything.· And yes, I have weapons, and my weapons are

·8· ·in my real name.· They coming through a vent.

·9· · · · · · ·Houston checked her daughter so bad, I heard the

10· ·conversation.· She said, didn't I tell you to leave her

11· ·the eff alone.· Now, these are the officers that

12· ·threatened to kill me.· But you all act like it's all

13· ·good, like they not even on the Detroit Police Department.

14· · · · · · ·Make this make sense, when Lieutenant Lockhart

15· ·confirmed who Cheryl Hall is.· Her fake name with housing

16· ·voucher is Michelle Hall.· Now, make that make sense.

17· ·Facts.· You all sit up here like it's all good.· We got

18· ·ex-offenders on the Detroit Police Department.

19· ·Constantly, you violating the Constitution.

20· · · · · · ·You want to get upset because ICE, they're not

21· ·doing their job in complying to the Constitution.· Don't

22· ·be mad, because the Detroit Police Department not either.

23· ·Isaac and Betti was talking, he was on a radio station

24· ·saying, it's number one protocol, safety is first.· He

25· ·shouldn't have never shot Allen six time.· It's a way to



·1· ·do your job.

·2· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you.

·3· · · · · · ·Next speaker.

·4· · · · · · ·MR. FOSTER:· Good afternoon, through the Chair.

·5· · · · · · ·Say Mark 3:27, it reads, no man can enter into a

·6· ·strong man's house and spoil his goods, except he will

·7· ·first bind the strong man.· And then he will spoil his

·8· ·goods, spoil his house.· And so, you guys are in a

·9· ·position of authority.· A lot of our citizens are

10· ·complaining.· It can't be a blind eyed turn to it when

11· ·they're making the same complaints.· I respectfully ask

12· ·you all to audit your community input over government

13· ·surveillance activities and ensure that there is not any

14· ·civil rights violation with geofencing or any other

15· ·technology here, that may be having our community feeling

16· ·the way that they're feeling.

17· · · · · · ·Secondly, I ask you all to just examine your

18· ·policies, exercise in humanity.· When we talk about

19· ·compelling our community, our community is compelled.· You

20· ·know, I believe that our community will surrender their

21· ·civil rights on a traffic stop with the mindset of

22· ·believing that they potentially could be shot six or seven

23· ·times, right?· And so, we have to learn to compel our

24· ·community through love, through resources, through

25· ·discretion, and other tools that you have.· It cannot be



·1· ·compelled through just coercion and root force.· Okay?

·2· · · · · · ·Thirdly, I am optimistic about the changes here.

·3· ·I'm not sure if they're going to be good or worse.· But

·4· ·one thing I'm certain is, is that we cannot be stagnant in

·5· ·this city any longer.· We have to take risks one way or

·6· ·the other to progress our quality of life and to make

·7· ·changes here across the board for everyone.

·8· · · · · · ·And lastly, when you consider the

·9· ·disqualifications of officers, I ask you all to search

10· ·your conscience and think about the infractions in which

11· ·you kept officers on this force.· And I appreciate

12· ·everyone, and Mr. Woods has done good these last few

13· ·years, Mr. Mallet, I'm just here to push for a better

14· ·community for everybody.· I have no beefs with anyone.

15· ·Thank you.

16· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you.

17· · · · · · ·Next speaker, please.

18· · · · · · ·MR. SMITH:· I just want to play a little clip.

19· ·I played it before but Devonte Smith for the record.

20· ·Let's see.· This is so corrupt.

21· · · · · · ·(Video playing from Mr. Smith's phone.)

22· ·So today, I'm going to make sure I put this audio out of

23· ·Mr. -- I put it out already.· I'm going to make sure I put

24· ·this new story out within, before the next week out, about

25· ·Conrad Mallet.· Also, you went to city council today.· You



·1· ·said that your father was a Detroit police officer.· You

·2· ·have an affinity toward Detroit police officers.· And you

·3· ·also said that your godfather or stepfather was some

·4· ·famous officer as well in the department.· You should not

·5· ·be sitting on this board.

·6· · · · · · ·I am coming for your law license, sir.· Your law

·7· ·license, because that is unethical.· As through the Chair,

·8· ·DC Parish could explain, as an attorney, you should not be

·9· ·unsolicited offering jobs to any individual in the city of

10· ·Detroit without them asking you or without permission.

11· ·You probably have permission from Mary Sheffield, who was

12· ·not elected yet, because this audio comes from November

13· ·4th at 9:30 a.m.· I also want to say there's a lot of

14· ·officers within the Homicide Department that are not doing

15· ·a good job.· It's just very interesting how this board is

16· ·being usurped by your power, and you're also taking over

17· ·the Board of Ethics.· I hope that seat you're sitting in

18· ·is hot, hotter than hell.

19· · · · · · ·You also got the black elite in the city of

20· ·Detroit, through the Chair, also mad at me, I could give a

21· ·sugar, honey, iced tea.· I don't care about none of that

22· ·they have.· You guys can't buy me, can't break me, can't

23· ·shake me.· And, to Commissioner Woods, you are terrible.

24· ·Also, Commissioner Williams Lavish.· You are also a felon

25· ·on this board, and you cheated to win your seat.· I'm



·1· ·going to bring that lawsuit the next time I come.

·2· · · · · · ·I'm going to make sure I do a story about you as

·3· ·well, because you cheated.· Gloria Height did not ever

·4· ·sign your nominating petitions.· You forged her signature.

·5· ·Cheaters never win.· Y'all can't touch me, can't silence

·6· ·me, can't do nothing to me.· I'm coming for your license.

·7· · · · · · ·MS. UNDERWOOD:· Thank you, Mr. Smith.· Our next

·8· ·two speakers in the audience will be Claudia Cooper and

·9· ·Ms. Bernice Smith.

10· · · · · · ·Ms. Cooper?

11· · · · · · ·MS. COOPER:· I wasn't ready.· I thought you were

12· ·going to Zoom.· Claudia Cooper.

13· · · · · · ·On June 13th, 2024, there was a wellness

14· ·check -- I'm sorry, at a family member's home, their

15· ·remains were found.· And what I really just want is to

16· ·find out where the case is.· I've been contacting the

17· ·officer that were supposed to be in charge.· There's no

18· ·email, voicemail set up.· And just want some closure.· So,

19· ·if there's someone here that I can talk to --

20· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· If you want to finish your time and

21· ·be done -- excuse me, through the Chair.

22· · · · · · ·MS. COOPER:· I'll yield my time to someone else,

23· ·that's all I need.· Thank you.

24· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you.

25· · · · · · ·Next speaker.



·1· · · · · · ·MS. SMITH:· Good afternoon.

·2· · · · · · ·THE BOARD:· Good afternoon.

·3· · · · · · ·MS. SMITH:· This is a hot meeting today.· To my

·4· ·commissioners, I'm Bernice Smith, former police

·5· ·commissioner, 1973, number one.· Number one, let me

·6· ·straighten this out about Conrad.· Conrad's daddy was on

·7· ·Coleman Young's campaign when he was running, and he wound

·8· ·up, Conrad is a judge.· I don't know where he get his

·9· ·information from.· He was formerly a judge down in the

10· ·state, state judge, right?· Am I right or wrong?

11· · · · · · ·CORPORATE COUNSEL MALLET:· Yes, ma'am.

12· · · · · · ·MS. SMITH:· So how in the hell you're going to

13· ·be telling somebody they don't have no law degree.· That's

14· ·all right.· To all you youngsters that come here that

15· ·don't know what you're talking about, get your history

16· ·together, all right?· Now, you made me forget what I was

17· ·going to say.· Oh, I've got a lot to say, believe me,

18· ·especially about you.· You don't need to be here, period.

19· ·To all the new commissioners, that's what I wanted to say.

20· · · · · · ·Welcome, welcome.

21· · · · · · ·THE BOARD:· Thank you.

22· · · · · · ·MS. SMITH:· I don't know your names by heart.  I

23· ·know that's my one baby over there because she worked with

24· ·Coleman Young with me.· So, I know about her.· But to the

25· ·rest of you, welcome to our commission.· You are going --



·1· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Let her speak, please.

·2· · · · · · ·MS. SMITH:· Put him out.

·3· · · · · · ·One or the other, put him out.

·4· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· You are out of order.

·5· ·Please, let her speak.· She let you speak; you let her

·6· ·speak.· Excuse me, DC, can I get some help here?

·7· · · · · · ·MR. PARISH:· Officer --

·8· · · · · · ·MS. SMITH:· You going to go today.

·9· · · · · · ·OFFICER IN THE AUDIENCE:· Come on.

10· · · · · · ·Come on, good brother.

11· · · · · · ·MR. PARISH:· Okay.· Madam Chair, has there been

12· ·a finding by the board, that this individual is disrupting

13· ·the business of the board and the board's business cannot

14· ·carry on?

15· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Yes.

16· · · · · · ·MR. PARISH:· Officer, remove Mr. Smith from the

17· ·room.· That's an order.

18· · · · · · ·(Mr. Smith being taken out of meeting.)

19· · · · · · ·MS. SMITH:· You cannot come to this meeting and

20· ·be disrupted.· We have to be intelligent.· I'm 93 years

21· ·old and I still know what politeness means.· So please,

22· ·when you come to our meetings, be polite with each other.

23· · · · · · ·Now, I'm going to hurry up and get through.  I

24· ·want to talk about the two police that I feel as though

25· ·that our chief did a good job.· He always does a good job.



·1· ·I love him dearly, just like he's my son.· But the fact

·2· ·is, when the police feel as though that they can't do

·3· ·their job, call your supervisor.· Do not call any ICE or

·4· ·anything that don't belong to our city.· You're the one

·5· ·that takes care of the business of our city.

·6· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· We're going to give her

·7· ·a few more seconds.· Because she was disrupted.

·8· · · · · · ·MS. SMITH:· Yes.· Our police, I love them all.

·9· ·I respect them all.· And they're doing their job.· Once

10· ·they put that uniform on, they're protecting all of us.

11· ·But we don't seem to understand that.· They took an oath.

12· · · · · · ·And that is to protect us when they go on their

13· ·job.· And we got to respect them.· If they do wrong, we

14· ·report them.· That's what we do.· And I feel as though the

15· ·two should have reported to their superiors instead of

16· ·calling the ICE people.· They don't have anything to do

17· ·with our city.· They shouldn't be here.

18· · · · · · ·We have been intelligent enough all these many

19· ·years to take care of our city.· So, I beg the people,

20· ·behave and don't do the things that you should not do.

21· ·And, to the new members welcome, welcome, welcome.· I do

22· ·not know you personally, but you seem like you're going to

23· ·do a good job.· So, keep up the good work and may God

24· ·continue to bless all of us in this room.· I thank you.

25· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you.



·1· · · · · · ·Next speaker.

·2· · · · · · ·Commissioner Boman.

·3· · · · · · ·MR. BOMAN:· I just wanted to, while I share

·4· ·your sentiment, I just wanted to be clear that it was

·5· ·Border Patrol, not ICE, just as a factual matter.

·6· · · · · · ·Thank you.

·7· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Right.· Thank you.

·8· · · · · · ·Next speaker.

·9· · · · · · ·MS. UNDERWOOD:· Madam Chair, we're going to go

10· ·into Zoom.· Our next speaker will be Ms. Taura Brown.

11· · · · · · ·MS. BROWN:· Good afternoon, Commission.

12· ·Commissioner Dewaelsche, you need to get control of your

13· ·meetings.· This is chaos.· Every week is chaos in the

14· ·audience.· It's just chaos at your table.· Like, you are

15· ·the chair, ma'am.

16· · · · · · ·When Scotty Boman is asking a question and it's

17· ·directed to the police chief or the police, that's not for

18· ·your co-chair or your whatever, Darryl Woods is, to be

19· ·answering.· When questions are directed at Conrad Mallet,

20· ·that is not for him to jump in and answer.· Part of the

21· ·reason people come here and act crazy is because the board

22· ·is acting crazy.· Y'all violate the Open Meetings Act

23· ·blatantly, and I'm guessing part of the reason that

24· ·nobody's saying anything is because A, y'all just not

25· ·going to listen.· And B, they tired of repeating the same



·1· ·thing.· That marathon meeting y'all had last week, that

·2· ·was longer than 7 Mile, that afterwards commissioners sent

·3· ·emails about was a clear indication that y'all violated

·4· ·the Open Meetings Act.· It may not have seemed like it to

·5· ·y'all, but you did.

·6· · · · · · ·And, even today, with the woman standing up

·7· ·there talking before her two minutes were finished and

·8· ·Darryl Woods cut her off, that is a violation of the Open

·9· ·Meetings Act.· You are disrupting her public comment.

10· ·Like, what is the problem?· And then you're giving extra

11· ·time to someone who spent their public comment arguing

12· ·with somebody in the audience.· Then you had Devonte

13· ·removed.· He'll be back next week.

14· · · · · · ·Again, the only thing that was missing tonight

15· ·was Rue and I'm wondering where he's at.· Again, this

16· ·meeting is in constant chaos.· There are social workers on

17· ·the DPD staff and I know it is not their job to police the

18· ·audience but maybe y'all should have one sitting there

19· ·because we keep having more and more people from other

20· ·planets showing up at this meeting prolonging public

21· ·comment.· Now tonight we got commissioners doing

22· ·interrogations of the craziness.· Like what in the world

23· ·is going on y'all?· Get it together.

24· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Next speaker.

25· · · · · · ·Commissioner Woods.



·1· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· Through the chair, let the record

·2· ·clearly reflect that we didn't cut the lady off.· She was

·3· ·in distress because she had a loved one who has been

·4· ·missing and she was asking for some help.· I pointed

·5· ·towards the help and I went out there to be able to make

·6· ·sure that she got the help that she deserved as a citizen

·7· ·of the city of Detroit.· And so, I know that people can

·8· ·look on TV and look all that stuff, but you can't see

·9· ·exactly what's going on in here and we are very sensitive

10· ·when people are hurting in our city, you know.· And we're

11· ·going to respond and do the best that we possibly can do

12· ·to help our citizens to get the answers that they deserve.

13· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you.

14· · · · · · ·Next speaker, please.

15· · · · · · ·MS. UNDERWOOD:· Madam Chair, we have two

16· ·speakers left in Zoom.· Our first speaker will be Mia Paul

17· ·and then Juanita.· Please state your name for the record.

18· · · · · · ·MS. PAUL:· Hello.· Good afternoon.· My name is

19· ·Mia Paul.· I am concerned about the substance use that has

20· ·been going on in the neighborhoods of John R.· Along 6

21· ·Mile, 8 Mile, all across District 3.· It's to my knowledge

22· ·that, I believe, Eva and Commissioner Woods is on the

23· ·board for SUD.· So that should be --

24· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Correction.

25· · · · · · ·I'm not on that board.



·1· · · · · · ·MS. PAUL:· Okay.· All right.· Well, that means

·2· ·SUD and criminal activity, so that should be something

·3· ·that, you know, DPD is working on.· You have bodies that's

·4· ·being found in the street and homes.· People live in that

·5· ·neighborhood, so that should be a concern of DPD getting

·6· ·that handled.· It's an ongoing thing.· People with mental

·7· ·health issues should not be faced to basically die in the

·8· ·street.· So, that's something that you guys need to take a

·9· ·hold on.

10· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you.

11· · · · · · ·MR. MORRIS:· Through the Chair.

12· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Yes, Commissioner.

13· · · · · · ·MR. MORRIS:· I'm going to agree with Ms. Paul

14· ·because the area that she described, 6 and John R, you

15· ·know, that's in my district, we do have a very huge

16· ·problem over there with a lot of dope selling and dope

17· ·using over there.· Prostitution, a lot of nefarious

18· ·activity is taking place over there.· DC, if we can set up

19· ·some sort of meeting with the commander of the 11th

20· ·Precinct, to see what special operations we can conduct in

21· ·that area to take a more aggressive stance on the activity

22· ·taking place, that would really help the community out.

23· · · · · · ·MR. PARISH:· Absolutely.· I'll coordinate a

24· ·meeting with the BOPC secretary.· I would just ask that

25· ·you convey to her if there's anybody else that needs to be



·1· ·in the room, provide that information to her as well.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. MORRIS:· Okay.· Sure will.

·3· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you.

·4· · · · · · ·Commissioner Woods.

·5· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· From my understanding, you guys just

·6· ·took a lot of drugs off of 6 Mile and John R.· A major

·7· ·raid operation that happened, what, about last week.

·8· · · · · · ·MR. PARISH:· Yes.

·9· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· And I think kilos, got fentanyl, all

10· ·kinds of stuff, they had a major raid over there last

11· ·week.

12· · · · · · ·MR. MORRIS:· That was the one where they

13· ·collaborated with the DEA and everything on the news and

14· ·stuff --

15· · · · · · ·MR. MALLET:· Yeah.

16· · · · · · ·MR. MORRIS:· We just want to make sure because

17· ·we know, you know, it'll cool down for a minute, but then

18· ·it'll pick back up, so we need to come up with a plan to

19· ·actually curve that and keep it down.

20· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Correct.

21· · · · · · ·Any other questions before we go to the next

22· ·speaker?

23· · · · · · ·MS. UNDERWOOD:· Our last caller.· Juanita.

24· · · · · · ·MS. JUANITA:· Jawana from the Littlefield Eaton

25· ·Block Club.· I just want to say good afternoon to all



·1· ·commissioners.· My commissioner, District 7, Commissioner

·2· ·Camille.· Hello.· Thank you for the resources that you

·3· ·have provided me with.· They have been so helpful.

·4· · · · · · ·I just want to say too, if anyone is in the

·5· ·second precinct, in the audience, we definitely could use

·6· ·traffic officers after 6:00 p.m., all through the night.

·7· ·It's a lot of speeding, drug activity on Eaton and

·8· ·Littlefield, as well as Chalfonte.· A lot of speeding, so

·9· ·we just could use some traffic officers in the second

10· ·precinct, not just the 8th, 9th, and 10th.· And y'all got

11· ·me scared to come to these meetings.· They too young

12· ·gangster we got -- I want to bring my son.· It just kind

13· ·of, like, chaotic, so I agree with Ms. Brown on some of

14· ·the stuff that she's saying.

15· · · · · · ·My son may be too young.· He's definitely too

16· ·young for this.· I want to set examples, but when we have

17· ·stuff like that in the audience, I don't think it's safe

18· ·for me or him.· Like, Grandma gangsta, the man gangsta,

19· ·it's too much, though.· We should do better with that, so

20· ·it can be safe for everyone's ears as well, because we

21· ·shouldn't be seeing that type of stuff.· That's all I have

22· ·to say.· Have a good day.

23· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you.

24· · · · · · ·Next --

25· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· Through the Chair.



·1· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Yes.

·2· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· I just wanted to thank Ms. Jawana

·3· ·for continuing to engage with the board, and I have your

·4· ·concern regarding the activity after 6:00 p.m. on

·5· ·Littlefield and Chalfonte, and we'll have some discussions

·6· ·with the second precinct.

·7· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you,

·8· ·Commissioner.· Any other speakers?

·9· · · · · · ·MS. UNDERWOOD:· Madam Chair, that's the last

10· ·speaker.

11· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you.

12· · · · · · ·CORPORATE COUNSEL MALLET:· Madam Chair, if I

13· ·may.

14· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Yes, Corporation

15· ·Counsel.

16· · · · · · ·CORPORATE COUNSEL MALLET:· Normally, part of the

17· ·job of a public servant is to, in a graceful manner,

18· ·accept the public's criticism, and I think I do it better

19· ·than most.· I think that I take it with some degree of

20· ·humor, and think that, and don't seek to shut down

21· ·someone's constitutional right to criticize a person in my

22· ·position for the job they think I'm doing.· But I will say

23· ·this.

24· · · · · · ·My father was a member of the Detroit Police

25· ·Department.· In my office, is his badge.· Frank Blount was



·1· ·one of my father's best friends and someone I consider to

·2· ·be my godfather.· Frank was legendary, as a black police

·3· ·officer inside DPD, when my father and Frank started, he

·4· ·was the either sixth or seventh or seventh or eighth black

·5· ·police officer on the force.· That does not create a

·6· ·conflict for me, but I am connected by both spirit and

·7· ·tradition.

·8· · · · · · · My sisters and I describe ourselves in our

·9· ·official biography.· My sister Veronica is a doctor, my

10· ·sister Lydia is a retired corporate human resources

11· ·executive, but our bios all start out that we are the sons

12· ·and daughters of Detroit Public School teachers and

13· ·consider ourselves to be public servants.· I did not come

14· ·by that by accident.· As I indicated, my mother,

15· ·schoolteacher, my father, eventually a schoolteacher, but

16· ·started out coming back from World War II as Detroit

17· ·police officer.

18· · · · · · ·So, that doesn't disqualify me from being a

19· ·member of, from doing the various jobs that I've done,

20· ·doesn't disqualify me from providing, what I think, is

21· ·thoughtful counsel to this police commission, but I just

22· ·wanted to be clear, that, in this case, I felt like I had

23· ·to respond only because I'm extraordinarily proud to be

24· ·Conrad Mallet, Jr., and I'm extraordinarily proud to have

25· ·in my life a strong, focused, ethical black man like Frank



·1· ·Blount.· We talk a lot of stuff about what we need from

·2· ·our young men and what we need black men to be doing with

·3· ·their children.· I'm the beneficiary of strong black men,

·4· ·raising me to be the man that I am and I just want to be

·5· ·sure that none of the police officers who knew my father,

·6· ·none of the police officers who worked for Deputy Chief

·7· ·Frank Blount, think for a minute, that I have forgotten

·8· ·who I am and where I come from.· That's all.· Thank you.

·9· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you, Corporation

10· ·Counsel, and I just want to thank you because at many

11· ·meetings you have just sat there and gracefully accepted,

12· ·you know, what is being thrown at you, and I just don't

13· ·know how you can do it.· I would not be able to, but thank

14· ·you for that clarity and what a beautiful history with

15· ·your family.

16· · · · · · ·CORPORATION COUNSEL MALLET:· Thank you.

17· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you.· And, Ms.

18· ·Smith, just to clarify, he was a Supreme Court Justice,

19· ·Chief Justice, so just to clarify, not just a judge.

20· ·Right.· Thank you.

21· · · · · · ·So, our next item, we have two presentations and

22· ·our first presentation is going to be the Detroit Police

23· ·Department Proposed Fiscal Year '27 Budget by Mr. Nazarko,

24· ·Assistant CFO.· Thank you.

25· · · · · · ·MR. NAZARKO:· Good afternoon, Madam Chair,



·1· ·Honorable Board.· I'm here today to present just the

·2· ·fiscal year 2027 budget request, Madam Chair, because the

·3· ·quarterly report, I believe, has been postponed upon our

·4· ·discussion the other day at the Finance Committee meeting.

·5· ·So today, I will go and present at a high-level overview

·6· ·the DPD's budget request for the fiscal year 2027.

·7· · · · · · ·In the documents that have been provided to the

·8· ·Board and in this presentation, we are going to talk about

·9· ·the fiscal year 2027 budget baseline, budget timeline, new

10· ·initiatives that are contained in this budget, summary of

11· ·revenues and expenditures for the upcoming fiscal year

12· ·2027, number of positions requested and the grants that

13· ·are part of the budget fiscal year 2027.· Just a quick

14· ·overview as to the how the budget process works.· All

15· ·departments must submit a balanced budget and, when I say,

16· ·all departments for the City of Detroit, including DPD,

17· ·that is based on long-term fiscal sustainability and based

18· ·on the revenue streams.· In other words, the City of

19· ·Detroit, including DPD, cannot spend more than what we

20· ·bring on the revenues.· Departments work with their agency

21· ·CFO, DPD with me, in this case, to prepare the budget

22· ·submissions within the required timelines that are imposed

23· ·by the Charter or by the State Law.· For the fiscal year

24· ·2027, outcome budgeting appropriations track safer

25· ·neighborhoods, vibrant and beautiful city, economic equity



·1· ·and opportunity, efficient and innovative operations and

·2· ·effective governance.

·3· · · · · · ·The furthermore on the budget timeline, we start

·4· ·working on the budget, DPD starts working on the budget in

·5· ·any given year, around the month of August.· Continues on

·6· ·into September and then by October, Office of Department

·7· ·Financial Services receives the department's request and

·8· ·reviews those requests to the Chief's office during the

·9· ·month of October.· Then, at the latest, by Thanksgiving,

10· ·ODFS submits the budget request to the Budget Office.

11· ·Budget Office reviews department's budget submissions and

12· ·complies, or compiles, rather, the overall city budget.

13· ·DPD presents and receives approval of the budget from

14· ·BOPC, which is tonight's meeting and presentation, and the

15· ·mayor presents her proposed budget to the City Council in

16· ·March.· This year will be on March 9th that Mayor

17· ·Sheffield will propose to the City Council her budget for

18· ·the fiscal year 2027.

19· · · · · · ·Continued deadlines, by February 18th, the

20· ·Budget Director submits to the mayor, as I mentioned

21· ·earlier, by April 8th.· So, the mayor submits to the

22· ·Council on March 9th, by ordinance it's March 7th, but

23· ·because March 7th falls on a weekend, March 9th is the

24· ·next day.· By April 7th, City Council completes the review

25· ·of the budget and the consideration, and by April 8th, the



·1· ·City Clerk submits City Council approved budget to the

·2· ·mayor.· The mayor has three business days, after April

·3· ·8th, to return the budget as approved by the City Council

·4· ·or to veto their budget.

·5· · · · · · ·And, the bottom line is that by April 30th, if

·6· ·there is back and forth between the mayor and the council,

·7· ·by April 30th, the Budget Director, under the supervision

·8· ·of the CFO, submits the approved budget to the FRC.· So

·9· ·that's as far as the timeline of the budget.· It's a state

10· ·mandate requirement that actually was part of the Detroit

11· ·coming out of bankruptcy, that by April 30th of any given

12· ·year, City of Detroit is required to have a budget

13· ·approved at the council and mayor level.· The 2027 budget

14· ·request has some new initiatives and I'll list the major

15· ·ones.· We are requesting, DPD is requesting $1.5 million,

16· ·$1.48 million to be exact, for the Mental Health

17· ·Correspondence Team.· This is a program that is currently

18· ·funded by ARPA dollars.

19· · · · · · ·Another $1.1 million is a supplemental request

20· ·to continue the Code Enforcement Team, which also is

21· ·currently funded by ARPA funds.· $336,000.00 for bomb

22· ·suits, rather.· $127,000.00 for Geosystem Scanners, which

23· ·are mobile mapping tools for accident investigation.· We

24· ·are requesting also $1.25 million for Grand River tow lot

25· ·improvements and another $800,000.00 for raid vests.



·1· · · · · · ·This slide shows the summary of the revenues and

·2· ·expenditures for the Detroit Police Department for the

·3· ·fiscal year 2027.· On this slide here, there are four

·4· ·funds.· So, the Detroit Police Department does the

·5· ·activity, accounts for the activity in four major funds.

·6· ·One is the Fund 1000, which is the general fund.

·7· · · · · · ·The bulk, almost 95 percent of DPD's revenues

·8· ·and expenditures are going through that fund.· The next

·9· ·fund is 2110, which is the Grants Fund.· Then is the

10· ·Forfeiture Fund 2601 and then is the Toll Fund and the so-

11· ·called 911 operations that are accounted for in Fund 3921.

12· ·The total revenues that DPD expects to receive in the

13· ·fiscal year of 2027 amount to $113,335,730.00.

14· · · · · · ·That's a total revenue broken down as follows.

15· ·$92.6 million in general fund, $6.8 in the Grants Fund,

16· ·$867,000.00 in Forfeiture Fund and $13 million,

17· ·approximately, combined in Tow Fund, plus 911 operations.

18· ·Expenditures, on the other hand, amount as follows.

19· ·General Fund $454.6 million, Grants Fund $6.8 million,

20· ·Forfeiture Fund $996,000.00 and Tow Fund and 911

21· ·operations $30 million.· The bottom line is that the total

22· ·budget request for DPD for the fiscal year 2027 is

23· ·$475,496,432.00.

24· · · · · · ·This slide, the next one, which I'm not going to

25· ·go over all the items but basically breaks down all the



·1· ·funds that I mentioned, the four funds in the previous

·2· ·slide, between salaries, or among, I should say, salaries,

·3· ·wages and benefits, non-personnel operating and capital

·4· ·and equipment acquisition.· So, the bottom line is, again,

·5· ·$475.5 million is the total requested budget for DPD for

·6· ·the fiscal year that starts on July 1st, 2026.· ·At the

·7· ·bottom of this slide, we are showing the full-time

·8· ·employees that are requested via this budget.· Fund 1000

·9· ·is requesting a total of 3,465 employees, combined uniform

10· ·and non-uniform.· Grant Funds another 40 full-time and one

11· ·part-time position, so half-time.· Forfeiture Fund has

12· ·seven employees and the positions rather and the Toll Fund

13· ·and the 911, again, combined 99 employees.

14· · · · · · ·The total number of employees requested,

15· ·personnel requested via this budget is 3,611 full-time and

16· ·one part-time position.· The supplemental request consists

17· ·of only 34, which is included in this number, consists of

18· ·only 34 positions and those positions are split, I

19· ·believe, 17 for the Mental Health Correspondence

20· ·Initiative and 17 of them for the Code Enforcement

21· ·Operations.· On the next slide, we are breaking down the

22· ·total positions by the uniform and non-uniform.· So, the

23· ·total budget request for non-uniform is 866.5, then

24· ·uniform is 2,711 positions.· The civilian positions

25· ·include 34 supplemental that we talked about between the,



·1· ·again, Code Enforcement and Mental Health Correspondence.

·2· · · · · · ·The next slide shows the grants that are part of

·3· ·this budget request and I'll just name them briefly, is

·4· ·VOCA Grant for Fiscal Year 2027, ATPA Oakland County, ATPA

·5· ·Preventing Auto Theft Fiscal Year 2027, STOP Grant,

·6· ·Justice Assistance Grant, Strategic Traffic Enforcement

·7· ·Program, Operation Stonegarden, Crime Victim

·8· ·Sustainability Fund, and Dearborn Auto Theft Unit Grant.

·9· ·The total amount that we're requesting for all these

10· ·grants amounts to 6.8 million dollars.· And this, Madam

11· ·Chair and Honorable Board, is the high-level overview of

12· ·the DPD's budget for the fiscal year 2027.· I would be

13· ·happy to answer any questions you may have.

14· · · · · · ·Before I ask for your vote, because I hope that

15· ·at the end of this, we have a vote to approve the budget.

16· ·As I said, the mayor is going to present to the City

17· ·Council on the 9th and the DPD, or BOPC, normally should

18· ·have the budget request approved by that time.· I did

19· ·respond to one question that was, came up during our

20· ·budget finance subcommittee meeting and the question

21· ·pertained to the 10 additional employees for the

22· ·communications operations.· As I indicated in my response,

23· ·those positions have been, that request has been withdrawn

24· ·and Chief Bettison has indicated that, yes, those

25· ·positions are necessary to continue the operation to help



·1· ·the DPD's operations.· However, he is going to look for

·2· ·alternative solutions for that, and namely from vacancies

·3· ·or retirements within that particular department.

·4· · · · · · ·Therefore, they will be budget neutral, so that

·5· ·request is not going to change the total dollar amounts

·6· ·that is in front of you today.

·7· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you, Mr. Nazarko.

·8· · · · · · ·Are there any questions for Mr. Nazarko?

·9· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· Madam Chair, I have a question.

10· ·Thank you, Mr. Nazarko, for taking that request back to

11· ·the Chief that we discussed in the committee meeting and

12· ·definitely appreciative of the Chief looking for ways to

13· ·look across the department and gain some efficiencies to

14· ·make sure that communications is properly staffed without

15· ·increasing the overall head count by 10.· So, I'm trying

16· ·to follow the dollar amounts on that change.· So, I'm

17· ·looking at a bottom-line number of $476,932,584.00 was the

18· ·number, like, the bottom-line budget number we were

19· ·working with at the committee meeting, I believe, and then

20· ·now what you presented was the $475 million.· Is that the

21· ·difference with those 10 positions out?

22· · · · · · ·MR. NAZARKO:· Through the Chair, yes, Honorable

23· ·Commissioner, that is the difference because we took off

24· ·the 10 positions.· Furthermore, I believe that although we

25· ·did not discuss at the committee meeting, we took off



·1· ·another $800,000.00 that was requested as a supplemental

·2· ·for expansion of the shot-spotter and that was rejected as

·3· ·well.· So, the Chief pulled that request.

·4· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· Thank you so much.· So, Madam

·5· ·Chair, just to clarify based on my calculation here,

·6· ·that's $1,436,152.00 that we were able to, through

·7· ·discussions, reduce that budget by between the committee

·8· ·meeting and now.· So, again, just appreciate the

·9· ·department for the consideration in this difficult budget

10· ·year.

11· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you,

12· ·Commissioner.

13· · · · · · ·Commissioner Watts?

14· · · · · · ·MS. WATTS:· Thank you.· It was a pleasure

15· ·hearing it more in our budget meeting last week or this

16· ·week, but again, I know I had asked a question in the

17· ·committee meeting about the additional 10 for the

18· ·communication, just seeing a measurable and how would that

19· ·make the operation more efficient and you answered that

20· ·and thank you for getting back.· So, now since the Chief

21· ·is going to pull that back, are you sure that the

22· ·operation can still run efficient, without the additional

23· ·staff?

24· · · · · · ·MR. NAZARKO:· I had a discussion with the Chief

25· ·yesterday.· As a matter of fact, Commander Russell, who is



·1· ·the head of operations, they are confident that the

·2· ·operation can still run smoothly.· However, as I said,

·3· ·through the retirements and the vacancies, things will

·4· ·change in the future via budget amendments, but there will

·5· ·not be any additional dollars requested from the board or

·6· ·from the city of Detroit.

·7· · · · · · ·MS. WATTS:· Great, thank you for that

·8· ·consideration.· No more questions.

·9· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you.

10· · · · · · ·Commissioner Woods?

11· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· Yes, on behalf of the Chair and I am

12· ·hearing all discussion.· We did have the conversation with

13· ·the Chief, and he said that he's able to be able to work

14· ·through those vacancies and stuff like that to put sworn

15· ·officers into those positions who are currently holding

16· ·it.· They were trying to get non-sworn members in that

17· ·position.· So, I'm very, very happy that we are saving the

18· ·city of Detroit almost 1.5 million dollars.

19· · · · · · ·So, great work to your committee, Madam Chair,

20· ·the whole team has been phenomenal.· So, thank you guys

21· ·for that.· Mr. Nazarko and Drew, we have to give our hats,

22· ·take our hats off to you guys for working diligently for a

23· ·budget that reflects the values of the citizens of the

24· ·city of Detroit.· Thank you very kindly.

25· · · · · · ·MR. NAZARKO:· Thank you, sir.



·1· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you for that,

·2· ·Commissioner Woods.· And, yes, I would just like to say

·3· ·that Drew Fries, our financial executive manager, worked

·4· ·very closely with Mr. Nazarko for the past two months or

·5· ·so, in getting the meetings scheduled with our committee

·6· ·and we had a very extensive meeting this week, to go over

·7· ·30 plus questions that we had on the budget and we were

·8· ·able to get all of those questions answered very, you

·9· ·know, to our satisfaction so that we can hopefully improve

10· ·the budget and those that we didn't get answered, as

11· ·Commissioner Camille indicated, were answered by today.

12· ·Commissioner Boman, did you have --

13· · · · · · ·MR. BOWMAN:· Yes, I was wondering, first of all,

14· ·were notifications put out to all the board members

15· ·regarding budget committee meetings because I hadn't --

16· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Those notifications are

17· ·in the packet every week, our committee meetings.

18· · · · · · ·MR. BOMAN:· Oh, it's in the packet.

19· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Well, they're in the

20· ·agenda and I'm sure that notices went out as well because

21· ·Mr. Fries has sent out numerous documents to the full

22· ·board.· He's going to be getting up in a minute.· He can

23· ·also mention that, but yeah.

24· · · · · · ·MR. BOMAN:· Is there a, is it posted somewhere

25· ·or would we have to request it to be sent to us to



·1· ·actually view a more detailed enumeration of the budget

·2· ·than was in this presentation?

·3· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Madam Secretary.

·4· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· To the Chair, through the Chair,

·5· ·yes, you are exactly correct because Mr. Fries and I began

·6· ·last year a very aggressive schedule to meet the timeline

·7· ·of the city.· Together with Ms. Nazarko, we've had

·8· ·numerous conversations and we knew with newly elected

·9· ·board members coming on, we needed to get in front of

10· ·this.· And so almost, I know we started well before

11· ·October sending messages and we continued, even

12· ·correspondences and communications that was sent before

13· ·the new board was seated, almost weekly.· So, in great

14· ·detail.· And we also had responses from board members who

15· ·are not budget committee members, lengthy questions that

16· ·helped us in even more detail to get back to Mr. Nazarko

17· ·and we pushed hard with each other to get all the

18· ·responses, which then, as the chair has said, the

19· ·committee meeting was announced.· The committee met this

20· ·week in great detail, probably almost three hours

21· ·according to the chair, budget chair.

22· · · · · · ·And today we have before you, even yet again,

23· ·additional responses, that the committee and other

24· ·commissioners who attended that meeting, in great detail,

25· ·what they requested.· And so, you have before you today,



·1· ·the high-level presentation together with all the

·2· ·inquiries of the board members that were made, Madam

·3· ·Chair.

·4· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you.

·5· · · · · · ·Any other --

·6· · · · · · ·MR. BOMAN:· Yeah.· The answer to my question,

·7· ·how may I get ahold of this?

·8· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· I'm sorry?

·9· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· He would like a

10· ·detailed budget to look at.

11· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· I did, in fact, bring one copy.

12· ·So that which was printed off the detail, which the

13· ·committee review is also electronically, but if you would

14· ·like to have this copy.

15· · · · · · ·MR. BOMAN:· I actually, I prefer the electronic

16· ·copy.

17· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· I'm sorry?

18· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Electronic copy, he'd

19· ·like.

20· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Electronic copy, this is from

21· ·that.· It's in your email from -- where's Drew?

22· ·Help me -- the last detail we sent was --

23· · · · · · ·MR. FRIES:· Through the Chair --

24· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· He's at the podium.

25· · · · · · ·MR. FRIES:· Commissioner Boman, thank you for



·1· ·the question.· An email was sent this morning at 10:41

·2· ·a.m., that reflects the revised budget from Mr. Nazarko,

·3· ·as well as an exhaustive list of all inquiries and DPD's

·4· ·responses generated from this board, from community

·5· ·members and internal staff.

·6· · · · · · ·MR. BOMAN:· Okay.· I'm looking for it.

·7· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Okay.

·8· · · · · · ·Commissioner Woods.

·9· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· Yeah.· Mr. Fries, for clarification

10· ·Point, the budget was sent out much previously before then

11· ·but based upon Commissioner Camille's and the chair of the

12· ·budget committee and Commissioner Watts, who's on the

13· ·budget committee, they had concern with about that 1.5

14· ·million dollars that we saving the citizens of the city of

15· ·Detroit.· So, the revision was that, with that commission

16· ·for this morning, yeah.· But the budget had came out much

17· ·prior to that.· Okay?

18· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Any other questions?

19· ·Any other questions for Mr. Nazarko before he leaves the

20· ·podium?· Just a real quick question.· I don't want to

21· ·belabor this, but since it has been brought up by the

22· ·public and by our commissioners, with regard to the mental

23· ·health initiative that we have with the department, you

24· ·indicate there's a 1.48 million that we have budgeted for

25· ·that program.· I'm just curious and I know that was funded



·1· ·previously by ARPA, is that an increase?· Are we, from,

·2· ·say, the previous year, before or say before ARPA?

·3· · · · · · ·MR. NAZARKO:· Madam Chair.· Yes, that is an

·4· ·increase for the fiscal year 2027 compared to 2026.· We

·5· ·call that a supplemental request.· However, as a total for

·6· ·the city though, because it's shifting now from ARPA

·7· ·funded to DPD, but strictly speaking of DPD's budget, that

·8· ·is an increase over the last year's budget.

·9· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Okay.· Thank you.

10· · · · · · ·Any other questions?· Hearing none, then.

11· · · · · · ·Thank you, Mr. Nazarko.· We appreciate it.

12· · · · · · ·MR. NAZARKO:· Thank you very much.

13· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Our next presentation

14· ·is going to be by our fiscal executive manager, Mr. Fries.

15· · · · · · ·MR. FRIES:· Through the Chair and to this

16· ·Honorable Board.· It's nice to formally meet you all.· My

17· ·name is Drew Fries, and I am the executive fiscal manager

18· ·to this body.· I'm hoping to see the presentation come up

19· ·on the screen, but we will be sharing with you the BOPC

20· ·budget actuals for the first half of this fiscal year,

21· ·which is July through December.· We'll also be looking at

22· ·budget utilization of the BOPC budget over the last couple

23· ·of years.· And then, my last slide is, again, speaking to

24· ·the great progress made on the DPD budget review.

25· · · · · · ·Can we go to the next view?· Can we go to the



·1· ·next view, sorry.· Okay.

·2· · · · · · ·So, what we see here is the BOPC budget over the

·3· ·last four years.· Two years ago, we increased that budget

·4· ·by 21 percent.· Last year from the present fiscal year, we

·5· ·increased that budget by 3 percent.· And, in each year, we

·6· ·have done a greater job of utilizing those dollars in the

·7· ·name of civilian oversight for the city of Detroit.

·8· · · · · · ·90 percent, which is what we have accomplished

·9· ·in the current fiscal year, is the highest utilization of

10· ·BOPC budget funds in the last five years.· So, from the

11· ·birth of this body to today, we have the greatest number

12· ·of general funds that are being dedicated towards civilian

13· ·oversight.· And because we've done, thanks to this board,

14· ·such a great job of filling vacancies and making sure that

15· ·we are able to investigate civilian complaints, we are

16· ·utilizing that budget to its greatest degree.· I'm very

17· ·proud of this effort.

18· · · · · · ·If we go to the next slide.· So, here is that 90

19· ·percent through July of 2025 through December of 2025.· Of

20· ·the $2,238,037.00 budgeted, the board has spent

21· ·$2,018,503.00.· Year-to-date favorability is driven by

22· ·vacancies.· Many of these have since been filled.· And

23· ·travel and training, there's a small overspend due to the

24· ·2025 NACOLE conference, which took place in October of

25· ·2025.· Go to the next view.



·1· · · · · · ·Finally, I want to conclude with this is now the

·2· ·second year in a row, where thanks to Chief Bettison, the

·3· ·board has received the DPD's budget on a very favorable

·4· ·timeline.· Great work has been done by this body, great

·5· ·analysis has been led by internal staff, and great

·6· ·community engagement throughout the DPD's budget review.

·7· ·The BOPC Budget Committee met with DPD leadership on

·8· ·Tuesday.· The BOPC Budget Committee made a request for DPD

·9· ·to reduce their supplemental FTEs, which are alleviating

10· ·Precious General Funds in the upcoming fiscal year, and

11· ·DPD fulfilled this request, as noted by Mr. Nazarko.

12· ·Through this thorough budget review, this request in

13· ·saving the city $1.5 million displays a great level of

14· ·fiscal responsibility and partnership shared between the

15· ·two departments.· All of these details, per Commissioner

16· ·Boman's question, and updates coming out of the BOPC

17· ·Budget Committee meeting, as well as updates that have

18· ·come in the hours since this morning, have been shared

19· ·with commissioners.· And that concludes my presentation.

20· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you, Mr. Fries.

21· · · · · · ·Are there any questions?

22· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· Madam Chair.

23· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Yes, Commissioner.

24· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· Thank you.· Through the Chair.

25· · · · · · ·Thank you, Mr. Fries, for your work in this, and



·1· ·thank you for your responsiveness on additional analysis

·2· ·that's been requested throughout this process.· Definitely

·3· ·appreciate that.· I'm going to reference the BOPC budget

·4· ·actuals for Q1 and Q2.· I just have a couple questions on

·5· ·here.· So, you mentioned that for the travel and training

·6· ·so far, so we're showing overspending for that.· So, has

·7· ·that been corrected for the budget that's being developed

·8· ·right now for BOPC, where we're properly budgeting for

·9· ·travel and training since the NACOLE conference happens

10· ·every year?

11· · · · · · ·MR. FRIES:· Through the Chair, thank you for

12· ·the question.· I view this not as something incorrect

13· ·happening, but more of a gating issue.· So, this

14· ·$18,000.00 that you see in the budgeted, that really

15· ·should be half of the $82,000.00 that is for the full

16· ·year.· So, relative to that, we should still be slightly

17· ·overspent because there's a great conference that happens

18· ·in the first half of the year, and there's not a

19· ·conference that the board travels to in the second half of

20· ·the year.· I will reach out to our partners in finance

21· ·that allocate these funds across the quarters, but it's

22· ·not necessarily an error in the way that we are planning

23· ·for next year.· It's more just a gating.

24· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· Through the Chair, I'm following

25· ·you.· So, it's just when it's hitting the budget because



·1· ·of the timing.· Okay.· I'm following you.· Thank you.· And

·2· ·then for the operating services, that's the area where

·3· ·we're still showing that we're not really spending as much

·4· ·as we're budgeting for that.· Is that also a gating issue,

·5· ·or are we actually not utilizing our operating services as

·6· ·much as we expected?

·7· · · · · · ·MR. FRIES:· Through the Chair, that would

·8· ·represent favorability.· So, lines in operating services

·9· ·are telecommunications and WingSwept case management

10· ·system.· But I think some operating services that are yet

11· ·to take place is postage, which I think we're poised to do

12· ·in the spring.· And I would not call that a gating issue.

13· ·I would say that that's an opportunity for favorability.

14· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· Okay.· Thank you, Madam Chair.

15· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you.· Any other

16· ·questions?· Go ahead, Commissioner Boman.

17· · · · · · ·MR. BOMAN:· Okay.· I have one question about

18· ·whether -- okay.· Is there, because the Charter says, and

19· ·I know there is some disagreement here, but the Charter

20· ·says that the board can retain its own attorney.· All due

21· ·respects to the Corporation Counsel, I just want to ask,

22· ·is there money set aside in the budget for the eventuality

23· ·if that were to happen?

24· · · · · · ·MR. FRIES:· Through the Chair, thank you for

25· ·the question.· I would say that the large majority of the



·1· ·favorability that we've experienced in the first half of

·2· ·the year is due to -- the answer to your question,

·3· ·Commissioner Boman, is yes, we have a position for the

·4· ·attorney to the board.· Right now, that position remains

·5· ·open or vacant.

·6· · · · · · ·MR. BOMAN:· Thank you.

·7· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Okay.· Any other

·8· ·questions, Commissioners?· All right.

·9· · · · · · ·Just real quick, I just want to clarify.· This

10· ·chart of budget actuals are for the first two quarters of

11· ·the year, so that means we still have six months to

12· ·achieve our budget numbers.· Correct?

13· · · · · · ·MR. FRIES:· Through the Chair, correct.

14· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Okay.· And what you're

15· ·saying here is so far, we've achieved 90 percent of our

16· ·budget.· In other words, we're in line with 90 percent of

17· ·what was budgeted as of the second quarter.

18· · · · · · ·Is that how --

19· · · · · · ·MR. FRIES:· Through the Chair, that is correct.

20· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Okay.· Thank you.  I

21· ·just wanted to clarify that.

22· · · · · · ·Commissioner Woods.

23· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· I think it's vitally important to

24· ·add too, through the Chair, that there's two supervising

25· ·investigator positions that's posted internally, and so



·1· ·those positions have to be filled.· And then we'll bring

·2· ·in, have interviews for two more investigators that we'll

·3· ·post out to the community at large, and so that those have

·4· ·been vacant because they were waiting to give folks the

·5· ·opportunity to get some seniority in there, where it'd be

·6· ·a bigger pool.· Is that correct?

·7· · · · · · ·MR. FRIES:· Through the Chair, that is correct.

·8· ·The two senior investigators have been vacant for some

·9· ·time because due to the union contract, an investigator

10· ·needs two years of tenure before they qualify to be

11· ·promoted.· That is correct.

12· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· Okay.· And then, I'm hearing some

13· ·other things, so we'll be doing some more hiring and we'll

14· ·get all that to the board.· We have a personnel training

15· ·committee set up probably by next Friday, once all of the

16· ·postings are expired, you know, when the postings for the

17· ·supervising investigators are done.· Then we'll meet and

18· ·set up interviews for them, and then I'm certain that

19· ·we'll be doing interviews for two new investigators after

20· ·that, and I know some other things coming down the

21· ·pipeline as well.· So, thank you.· I just wanted to add

22· ·that because that was a lot of favorability there too,

23· ·right?

24· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you.· Any other

25· ·further questions?· Thank you, Mr. Fries.· I appreciate



·1· ·it.

·2· · · · · · ·MR. FRIES:· Thank you.

·3· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· At this time, I'd like

·4· ·to ask the secretary to report.

·5· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· The report for today, through the

·6· ·Chair, Madam Chair, is as listed under, I believe it's tab

·7· ·six, should be.· The incoming facial recognition and shot-

·8· ·spotter weekly reports are there.· There's also a response

·9· ·that is located under tab six, a response back from the

10· ·chief police officer on that specific incident.· The

11· ·budget committee memorandum that has been, for the most

12· ·part, reported out, but it's a printed copy.· The next

13· ·action item for that will be under tab eight.· Under new

14· ·business today.

15· · · · · · ·Also, you have the as for, Vice Chair Woods, for

16· ·your convenience, a copy, a hard copy of the posting of

17· ·senior investigator that is posted.· It's for internal

18· ·candidates only, but we, for your convenience, put a hard

19· ·copy in your FYI section.· Also, there's an updated copy

20· ·of the committee assignments.· There were a couple of

21· ·typos.· If anyone's wondering why that new sheet is there,

22· ·as was there a couple of weeks ago, and the announcements

23· ·for today are as follows.

24· · · · · · ·Next board meeting is Thursday, March 5th, 3:00

25· ·p.m. here at public safety headquarters.· The week after



·1· ·will be the March community meeting, Thursday, March 12th,

·2· ·6:30 p.m.· It will be in the 10th Precinct at the Helen

·3· ·Moore Community Center, Dexter Avenue, 11825, in Detroit.

·4· ·Committee meeting for this coming week.· The first meeting

·5· ·of the year of the policy committee will occur at 3:00

·6· ·p.m. Tuesday, March 3rd, and there will be other

·7· ·committees coming online to meet within the following

·8· ·weeks.· And that ends the report for the day, Madam Chair.

·9· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you.· Just a

10· ·quick question.· Maybe DC could answer it.· I noticed on

11· ·the facial recognition report that there are no numbers.

12· ·Does that mean nothing?· It says no activity.

13· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· DC, if I may, the report we

14· ·received on facial recognition, after speaking to

15· ·Commander Russell, it has appeared, several months, where

16· ·those specific areas, there was no report because there

17· ·was no, if I may, activity in those areas.

18· · · · · · ·MR. PARISH:· And that is correct.

19· · · · · · ·The facial recognition system has not been used.

20· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Okay.· That's good to

21· ·know.· I think we need to report that to the community

22· ·when we have no activity.· All right.· Thank you.· Next on

23· ·the agenda, we have unfinished business, and it's a closed

24· ·session pursuant to Section 8(f) of the Open Meetings Act,

25· ·MCL 15.268(f), candidate Eric Wright for the board to



·1· ·consider disqualified applicant appeal from DPD hiring

·2· ·process.· So, is there a motion to go into closed session?

·3· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· Madam Chair, I would like a motion

·4· ·to go into closed session to consider the candidate appeal

·5· ·of Eric Wright as well as candidate Justice Roberson.

·6· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Okay.· That was going

·7· ·to be the next closed session.· So, you're suggesting that

·8· ·we combine the two?

·9· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· Absolutely.

10· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Okay.· And if I could

11· ·just read that, it's closed session.· This is the second

12· ·one.· Closed session pursuant to Section 8(f) of the Open

13· ·Meetings Act, MCL 15.268(f), candidate Justice Roberson

14· ·for the board to consider disqualified applicant appeal

15· ·from DPD hiring process.· Go ahead.

16· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· I'll make a motion to go into closed

17· ·session for Eric Wright as well as candidate Justice

18· ·Roberson for the board to consider disqualified applicant

19· ·appeal.

20· · · · · · ·MR. JONES:· I'll support the motion.

21· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Okay.· So, the motion

22· ·has been made by Commissioner Woods, supported by

23· ·Commissioner Jones.· Is there any discussion?· Okay.

24· ·Hearing none.· All those in favor indicate by saying aye.

25· · · · · · ·THE BOARD:· Aye.



·1· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Opposed?· Okay.· We're

·2· ·in close -- we're going to closed session in three

·3· ·minutes.

·4· · · · · · ·MS. FRANCES JACKSON:· Madam Chair, this is the

·5· ·parliamentarian, you have to have a roll call vote.

·6· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Oh, you're right,

·7· ·exactly.

·8· · · · · · ·MS. FRANCES JACKSON:· To go into closed session.

·9· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· That's right.· Well, it

10· ·says here, majority vote required.· That's what it says

11· ·here for both of these.· Now, is that wrong?

12· · · · · · ·MS. FRANCES JACKSON:· Well, I will defer to

13· ·Corporation Counsel, but I believe the Open Meetings Act

14· ·requires a two-thirds roll call vote.· Corporation

15· ·Counsel, please correct the parliamentarian if necessary.

16· · · · · · ·CORPORATE COUNSEL MALLET:· I agree.

17· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Okay.· So, we're going

18· ·to have a roll call, and we'll have to make sure to

19· ·correct this the next time, or for the record, that this

20· ·was not a majority vote.

21· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· So noted.

22· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Okay.

23· · · · · · ·Could we have a roll call, please?

24· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Dewaelsche?

25· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Yes.



·1· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Woods?

·2· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· Yes.

·3· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Boman?

·4· · · · · · ·MR. BOMAN:· Yes.

·5· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Camille?

·6· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· Yes.

·7· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Carter is excused.

·8· · · · · · ·Commissioner Ivey?

·9· · · · · · ·MS. IVEY:· Yes.

10· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Jones?

11· · · · · · ·MR. JONES:· Yes.

12· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Morris?

13· · · · · · ·MR. MORRIS:· Yes.

14· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Watts?· Oh, sorry.

15· · · · · · ·Commissioner Williams?

16· · · · · · ·MR. WATTS:· Yes.

17· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Seven yay votes, Madam Chair.

18· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Is that two-thirds?

19· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Majority.

20· · · · · · ·I mean, two-thirds, yes.

21· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Okay.

22· · · · · · ·Three-minute recess, please.

23· · · · · · ·(At 4:45 p.m., off the record for closed

24· ·session.)

25· · · · · · ·(At 5:51 p.m., back on the record after closed



·1· ·session.)

·2· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Madam Secretary, could

·3· ·we have the roll call?

·4· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Dewaelsche?

·5· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Present.

·6· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Woods?

·7· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· Present.

·8· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Boman?

·9· · · · · · ·MR. BOMAN:· Present.

10· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Camille?

11· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· Present.

12· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Carter is excused.

13· · · · · · ·Commissioner Ivey?

14· · · · · · ·MS. IVEY:· Present.

15· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Jones?

16· · · · · · ·MR. JONES:· Present.

17· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Morris?

18· · · · · · ·MR. MORRIS:· I'm here.

19· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Watts?

20· · · · · · ·MS. WATTS:· Here.

21· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Williams?

22· · · · · · ·MR. WILLIAMS:· Present.

23· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· 9 present, Madam Chair.

24· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you.· So, as it

25· ·relates to the first closed session candidate Eric Wright,



·1· ·for the board to consider disqualified advocate appeal

·2· ·from DPD hiring process, what is the pleasure of the

·3· ·board?

·4· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· Motion to accept the recommendation

·5· ·of the department as it relates to Eric Wright denial.

·6· · · · · · ·MR. JONES:· Support.

·7· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· A motion has been made

·8· ·by Commissioner Woods, seconded by Commissioner Jones.· Is

·9· ·there any discussion?· All in favor indicate by saying

10· ·aye.

11· · · · · · ·THE BOARD:· Aye.

12· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Do we need a roll call?

13· · · · · · ·Okay.· We'll do a roll call.

14· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Woods?

15· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· Yes.

16· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Boman?

17· · · · · · ·MR. BOMAN:· Yes.

18· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Camille?

19· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· Yes.

20· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Carter is excused.

21· · · · · · ·Commissioner Ivey?

22· · · · · · ·MS. IVEY:· Yes.

23· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Jones?

24· · · · · · ·MR. JONES:· Yes.

25· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Morris?



·1· · · · · · ·MR. MORRIS:· Yes.

·2· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Watts?

·3· · · · · · ·MS. WATTS:· Yes.

·4· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Williams?

·5· · · · · · ·MR. WILLIAMS:· Yes.

·6· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Dewaelsche?

·7· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Yes.

·8· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· 9 yay votes, Madam Chair.

·9· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Okay.· The motion

10· ·carries.· Thank you.· As it relates to the closed session,

11· ·our second closed session for candidate Justice Roberson,

12· ·for the board to consider disqualified applicant appeal

13· ·from DPD hiring process, what is the pleasure of the

14· ·board?· Commissioner Boman?

15· · · · · · ·MR. BOWMAN:· Yeah, I move to accept the chief's

16· ·recommendation and deny the opportunity to apply again.

17· · · · · · ·MS. WATTS:· Support.

18· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· It's been moved by

19· ·Commissioner Boman, supported by Commissioner Watts.· Is

20· ·there any discussion?· Okay.· Could we have, Madam

21· ·Secretary, a roll call vote.

22· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Woods?

23· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· Yes.

24· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Boman?

25· · · · · · ·MR. BOMAN:· Aye.



·1· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Camille?

·2· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· Yes.

·3· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Carter is excused.

·4· · · · · · ·Commissioner Ivey?

·5· · · · · · ·MS. IVEY:· Yes.

·6· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Jones?

·7· · · · · · ·MR. JONES:· Yes.

·8· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Morris?

·9· · · · · · ·MR. MORRIS:· Yes.

10· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Watts?

11· · · · · · ·MS. WATTS:· Yes.

12· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Commissioner Williams?

13· · · · · · ·MR. WILLIAMS:· Yes.

14· · · · · · ·MS. GARNIER:· Nine yay votes, Madam Chair.

15· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you.· The motion

16· ·carries.· Thank you all.· We have one more item on the

17· ·agenda under new business and that is a motion.· We need a

18· ·motion for the Detroit Police Department proposed fiscal

19· ·year 2027 budget.

20· · · · · · ·MR. JONES:· Madam Chair, I move that the Board

21· ·of Police Commissioners approve the Detroit Police

22· ·Department's budget request for $475,496,432.00 for the

23· ·2027 fiscal year.

24· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· Support.

25· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· It's been moved to



·1· ·approve the motion for the Board of Police Commissioners

·2· ·to approve the Detroit Police Department's budget request

·3· ·of $475,496,432.00 for the 2027 fiscal year.· Motion made

·4· ·by Commissioner Jones and supported by Commissioner Woods.

·5· ·Do we need a roll call vote for this?· No.· Majority,

·6· ·right?

·7· · · · · · ·CORPORATE COUNSEL MALLET:· Yes.· Majority.

·8· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Okay.· Is there any

·9· ·discussion?· Further discussion?· Hearing none.· All those

10· ·in favor indicate by saying aye.

11· · · · · · ·THE BOARD:· Aye.

12· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Opposed?

13· · · · · · ·Motion carries.

14· · · · · · ·Thank you all.

15· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· Madam Chair, the two items we

16· ·discussed.

17· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Oh, that's correct.

18· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· They'll be brief.

19· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· That's correct.· We

20· ·have just two very brief items we want to bring to your

21· ·attention.

22· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· Thank you, Madam Chair.· So, in

23· ·response to the killing of Da'Quaine Johnson by police in

24· ·Grand Rapids, I move that the board draft an official

25· ·statement offering condolences to the family and



·1· ·reiterating our commitment to Detroiters that we will work

·2· ·to create and uphold police policies and accountability

·3· ·that honors and preserves lives, civil rights, and dignity

·4· ·of all people who live, work, and play in Detroit.· Again,

·5· ·that's for a draft to bring before the board for final

·6· ·approval.

·7· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Okay.· There's a motion

·8· ·on the floor.· Is there a second?

·9· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· I second.

10· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· I'm sorry, was there a

11· ·motion?

12· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· That was a motion.

13· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· That was a motion.

14· · · · · · ·CORPORATE COUNSEL MALLET:· He seconded.

15· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Okay.· A motion was

16· ·made by Commissioner Camille and seconded by Commissioner

17· ·Boman.· Is there any discussion?

18· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· I will just simply say, I don't

19· ·think we needed a motion on that.· I think it's due to

20· ·resolution, you know, in the future and it's bringing

21· ·before the board to vote on.· You know, I don't think that

22· ·required a motion, but I'm definitely 1000 percent

23· ·supportive of it.

24· · · · · · ·MS. FRANCES JACKSON:· Madam Chair, this is the

25· ·Parliamentarian.



·1· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Yes, Madam.

·2· · · · · · ·MS. FRANCES JACKSON:· If the board wants a

·3· ·resolution that is the board's resolution, then you do

·4· ·need a motion.· Any Commissioner may have the authority to

·5· ·do whatever they want to do, but in order for it to be the

·6· ·resolution of the board, then the motion has to be made by

·7· ·the board and the board has to approve that resolution.

·8· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Okay.· All those in

·9· ·favor -- any other discussion?· All those in favor

10· ·indicate by saying aye.

11· · · · · · ·THE BOARD:· Aye.

12· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Opposed?· The motion

13· ·carries.· Thank you.· The second item.

14· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· Thank you, Madam Chair.· I also

15· ·move that an ad hoc committee be formed to review the BOPC

16· ·bylaws and standard operating procedures to propose

17· ·revisions to the full board for approval.

18· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· I would like to ask

19· ·Madam Parliamentarian, do we need a motion for that?

20· ·To have an ad hoc committee set up bylaws?

21· · · · · · ·MS. FRANCES JACKSON:· Yes, Madam Chair, you do

22· ·and the reason you do is that the current bylaws don't

23· ·speak to the formation of special committees.· As a board,

24· ·you always have the right to form special committees, but

25· ·because there's no bylaw about it, you would then need a



·1· ·motion.· The motion, however, if I could advise the board,

·2· ·you need to identify how many people will be on it and how

·3· ·those individuals will be selected.· You could say

·4· ·appointed by the chair or you could say elected by the

·5· ·board, but the motion to create a special committee needs

·6· ·to include the number of people who will be on it, how

·7· ·those individuals will be selected, and if the

·8· ·parliamentarian could make another suggestion, it would

·9· ·be, I think, advisable to include the parliamentarian as

10· ·an advisor to that committee.· Not as a member, but as an

11· ·advisor.

12· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Absolutely.

13· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· Madam Chair, may I revise my

14· ·motion?

15· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Go ahead.

16· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· I move that an ad hoc committee of

17· ·a maximum of four commissioners be formed to review the

18· ·BOPC bylaws and standard operating procedures and propose

19· ·revisions to the full board and that those committee

20· ·members be appointed by the chair.

21· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you.· And that,

22· ·Madam Parliamentarian, will be an advisor to that

23· ·committee?

24· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· Yes.

25· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Do we have everything



·1· ·in that motion?· Okay.· The motion has been made by

·2· ·Commissioner Camille.· Seconded by?

·3· · · · · · ·MR. BOMAN:· Seconded.

·4· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· I'm sorry.· Go ahead.

·5· · · · · · ·MR. BOMAN:· I just seconded it.· That's all.

·6· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Okay.· You just

·7· ·seconded.· Is there any discussion?

·8· · · · · · ·MR. JONES:· Yes.

·9· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Speak into the mic,

10· ·please.

11· · · · · · ·MR. JONES:· Could the maker of the motion

12· ·consider, I know she set the number of four, but on

13· ·committees I'd just like odd numbers.· Five or three.

14· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· I'm fine with the maximum of five.

15· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Okay.· So, we --

16· · · · · · ·MS. CAMILLE:· Maximum of five, it could be less.

17· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Maximum.· All right.

18· ·So, do we have to do anything to amend that motion or just

19· ·make the change?

20· · · · · · ·MS. FRANCES JACKSON:· Madam Chair, since you

21· ·have not yet stated the motion, the motion belonged to the

22· ·maker of the motion, and therefore the maker of the motion

23· ·can amend her motion.· Once you state the motion, then she

24· ·could not do it.· But you have not yet stated the motion,

25· ·you were seeking a second.· So, the Commissioner,



·1· ·Commissioner Camille, can amend her motion, she just needs

·2· ·to state how she wants it to be stated.

·3· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· All right.· So

·4· ·Commissioner Camille has made the motion, and it was

·5· ·seconded by Commissioner Boman, and that is to create a

·6· ·subcommittee or an ad hoc committee.

·7· · · · · · ·MS. FRANCES JACKSON:· Special committee.

·8· · · · · · ·A special committee is something different,

·9· ·thank you.

10· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· A special committee for

11· ·to review the bylaws of the BOPC and that committee should

12· ·have a maximum --

13· · · · · · ·COMMISSIONER CAMILLE:· Standard operating

14· ·procedures, Madam Chair, I'm sorry.

15· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· And standard operating

16· ·procedures and that committee will have a maximum of five

17· ·members and those members will be appointed by the chair.

18· ·All right.· Is there any further discussion?

19· · · · · · ·MS. FRANCES JACKSON:· And the parliamentarian

20· ·will be an advisor.

21· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Oh, that's right.· And

22· ·the parliamentarian will be an advisor.· Any further

23· ·discussion?· All those in favor indicate by saying aye.

24· · · · · · ·THE BOARD:· Aye.

25· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Opposed?· The motion



·1· ·carries.· Thank you.

·2· · · · · · ·MS. FRANCES JACKSON:· Madam Chair.

·3· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Yes.

·4· · · · · · ·MS. FRANCES JACKSON:· I'm sorry.· I know you

·5· ·guys are really anxious to leave, but I just need to say

·6· ·this one thing.· There's been extensive work done when

·7· ·Commissioner Camille was the executive, was the secretary

·8· ·to the board.· And so, the parliamentarian would point out

·9· ·that if that work is still available, it could save this

10· ·current committee a lot of work if that documentation can

11· ·be pulled for review by the current special committee.

12· ·That's all.· Thank you.

13· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Thank you for that

14· ·information.· What is the pleasure of the board?

15· · · · · · ·MR. WOODS:· Motion to adjourn.

16· · · · · · ·MS. IVEY:· Seconded.

17· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· It's been moved to

18· ·adjourn by Commissioner Woods, seconded by Commissioner

19· ·Ivey.· Any discussion?· All in favor indicate by saying

20· ·aye.

21· · · · · · ·THE BOARD:· Aye.

22· · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON DEWAELSCHE:· Opposed?· Thank you.

23· · · · · · ·Motion carries.

24· · · · · · ·Thank you everyone for being here today.

25· · · · · · ·(At 6:02 p.m., meeting adjourned)



·1· · · · · · · · · · · · · · CERTIFICATION

·2· STATE OF MICHIGAN· ·)

·3· · · · · · · · · · · )

·4· COUNTY OF MACOMB· · )

·5· · · · · · I, Megan M. Harder, certify that the foregoing

·6· · · ·Detroit Board of Police Commissioners Meeting was

·7· · · ·taken by me; that it was transcribed by computer-

·8· · · ·assisted transcription software; and that this

·9· · · ·transcript is a true and correct transcription of the

10· · · ·proceedings in the above-entitled matter to the best

11· · · ·of my knowledge and ability.

12· · · · · · I further certify that I am neither counsel for,

13· · · ·related to, nor employed by any of the parties in the

14· · · ·action in which this proceeding was taken and that I

15· · · ·am not financially or otherwise interested in the

16· · · ·outcome of this action.

17· · · · · · ·Dated on this 26th date of February 2026.

18

19

20

21· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·________________________________

22· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·Megan M. Harder, CER-15895

23· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·Notary Public

24· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·Macomb County Michigan

25· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·My Commission Expires: 04/01/2030


















































	Transcript
	Caption
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32
	Page 33
	Page 34
	Page 35
	Page 36
	Page 37
	Page 38
	Page 39
	Page 40
	Page 41
	Page 42
	Page 43
	Page 44
	Page 45
	Page 46
	Page 47
	Page 48
	Page 49
	Page 50
	Page 51
	Page 52
	Page 53
	Page 54
	Page 55
	Page 56
	Page 57
	Page 58
	Page 59
	Page 60
	Page 61
	Page 62
	Page 63
	Page 64
	Page 65
	Page 66
	Page 67
	Page 68
	Page 69
	Page 70
	Page 71
	Page 72
	Page 73
	Page 74
	Page 75
	Page 76
	Page 77
	Page 78
	Page 79
	Page 80
	Page 81
	Page 82
	Page 83
	Page 84

	Word Index
	Index: $1,436,152.00..4
	$1,436,152.00 (1)
	$1.1 (1)
	$1.25 (1)
	$1.48 (1)
	$1.5 (2)
	$113,335,730.00 (1)
	$127,000.00 (1)
	$13 (1)
	$18,000.00 (1)
	$2,018,503.00 (1)
	$2,238,037.00 (1)
	$30 (1)
	$336,000.00 (1)
	$454.6 (1)
	$475 (1)
	$475,496,432.00 (3)
	$475.5 (1)
	$476,932,584.00 (1)
	$500,000.00 (1)
	$6.8 (2)
	$800,000.00 (2)
	$82,000.00 (1)
	$867,000.00 (1)
	$92.6 (1)
	$996,000.00 (1)
	(313) (1)
	0 (1)
	1 (1)
	1.48 (1)
	1.5 (2)
	10 (5)
	1000 (3)
	10:15 (1)
	10:41 (1)
	10th (3)
	118 (1)
	11825 (1)
	11th (2)
	12th (1)
	13th (1)
	14205 (1)
	1440 (1)
	15 (2)
	15.268(f) (2)
	15th (1)
	17 (2)
	18th (2)
	19320 (1)
	1973 (1)
	19th (5)
	1st (1)
	2 (1)
	2,711 (1)
	20 (1)
	2024 (3)
	2025 (7)
	2026 (8)
	2027 (18)
	20th (1)
	21 (1)
	2110 (1)
	21st (1)
	22nd (2)
	23 (2)
	23rd (1)
	25th (1)
	26 (1)
	2601 (1)
	26th (2)
	27 (1)
	3 (2)
	3,465 (1)
	3,611 (1)
	30 (4)
	30th (3)
	32 (1)
	34 (3)
	341 (1)
	36th (1)
	3921 (1)
	3:00 (4)
	3:27 (1)
	3rd (1)
	4 (1)

	Index: 40..ahead
	40 (1)
	4:45 (1)
	4th (1)
	53-year-old (1)
	5301 (2)
	57-year-old (1)
	5:51 (1)
	5th (1)
	6 (3)
	6.8 (1)
	60-year-old (1)
	6000 (1)
	628 (2)
	6:00 (2)
	6:02 (1)
	6:30 (1)
	6th (2)
	7 (2)
	766 (1)
	7th (4)
	8 (1)
	8(f) (2)
	866.5 (1)
	8th (6)
	9 (2)
	9-year-old (2)
	90 (4)
	900-9377 (1)
	911 (5)
	93 (1)
	95 (1)
	99 (1)
	9:00 (1)
	9:23 (1)
	9:30 (1)
	9th (8)
	a.m. (4)
	absolutely (8)
	accept (3)
	acceptable (2)
	accepted (1)
	accident (3)
	accomplish (1)
	accomplished (1)
	account (2)
	accountability (2)
	accounted (1)
	accounts (2)
	achieve (1)
	achieved (1)
	acquisition (1)
	act (9)
	acting (1)
	action (3)
	actions (3)
	activities (1)
	activity (10)
	actuals (3)
	ad (4)
	add (4)
	addition (1)
	additional (6)
	Additionally (1)
	adjourn (2)
	adjourned (1)
	administrative (5)
	adopt (2)
	advisable (1)
	advise (2)
	advisor (5)
	advocate (1)
	affairs (2)
	affinity (1)
	afraid (1)
	afternoon (12)
	agencies (1)
	agency (1)
	agenda (5)
	aggressive (2)
	agree (3)
	agreed (1)
	ahead (9)

	Index: ahold..beefs
	ahold (1)
	air (1)
	alarming (1)
	alert (4)
	alerted (1)
	alerts (1)
	Allen (1)
	alleviating (1)
	allocate (1)
	allowed (1)
	alternative (1)
	Alvina (3)
	Amanda (5)
	Amen (1)
	amend (3)
	amendments (1)
	amount (3)
	amounts (3)
	analysis (2)
	Angelique (1)
	announced (1)
	announcements (1)
	answering (1)
	answers (2)
	Anthony (2)
	anxious (1)
	anymore (3)
	anyone's (1)
	apartment (5)
	apologize (1)
	appeal (6)
	appeared (1)
	applicant (4)
	application (2)
	applied (1)
	apply (1)
	appointed (3)
	appreciative (1)
	appropriations (1)
	approval (3)
	approve (11)
	approved (5)
	approximately (3)
	April (7)
	Arabic (1)
	area (5)
	areas (2)
	arguing (1)
	Armecia (1)
	ARPA (5)
	arraigned (1)
	arrest (2)
	arrested (2)
	arrests (1)
	arrived (2)
	articulate (1)
	assaulting (1)
	assigned (1)
	assignments (1)
	Assistance (1)
	Assistant (2)
	at-fault-accident (1)
	ATPA (2)
	attempted (5)
	attended (2)
	attending (1)
	attention (2)
	attorney (3)
	audience (7)
	audio (2)
	Audiovisual (1)
	audit (1)
	August (2)
	authority (2)
	Auto (2)
	Avenue (2)
	aware (2)
	aye (23)
	baby (2)
	back (18)
	bad (1)
	badge (1)
	bailiff (1)
	balanced (1)
	bankruptcy (1)
	Barber (1)
	based (5)
	baseline (1)
	basically (2)
	battery (2)
	beautiful (2)
	beefs (1)

	Index: beg..call
	beg (1)
	began (4)
	Beginning (1)
	behalf (2)
	behave (1)
	belabor (1)
	believing (1)
	belong (1)
	belonged (1)
	belongings (1)
	beneficent (1)
	beneficiary (1)
	benefit (1)
	benefits (3)
	Bernice (2)
	Betti (1)
	Bettison (2)
	bias-based (1)
	bigger (1)
	bind (1)
	biography (1)
	bios (1)
	birth (1)
	bit (1)
	bizarre (1)
	black (7)
	blatantly (1)
	bless (1)
	blind (1)
	block (2)
	blocked (1)
	Blossom (1)
	Blount (3)
	board (83)
	board's (2)
	bodies (1)
	body (6)
	body-worn (1)
	Boman (45)
	Boman's (1)
	bomb (1)
	bond (1)
	books (2)
	BOPC (16)
	Border (1)
	bottom (5)
	bottom-line (2)
	Boulevard (1)
	BOWMAN (3)
	brain (1)
	break (2)
	breaking (1)
	breaks (1)
	briefly (1)
	bring (9)
	bringing (1)
	broadcasts (1)
	broken (3)
	brother (1)
	brought (1)
	Brown (3)
	budget (88)
	budgeted (4)
	budgeting (3)
	building (3)
	bulk (1)
	business (7)
	Butler (2)
	butt (1)
	buy (1)
	bylaw (1)
	bylaws (5)
	calculation (1)
	call (22)

	Index: called..Claudia
	called (3)
	caller (1)
	calling (2)
	calls (2)
	calm (1)
	cam (2)
	camera (4)
	cameras (1)
	Camille (43)
	Camille's (1)
	campaign (1)
	Candace (1)
	candidate (7)
	candidates (1)
	capital (1)
	care (3)
	carjackings (1)
	carries (11)
	carry (1)
	Carter (5)
	case (6)
	cases (1)
	cash (1)
	casings (2)
	causing (7)
	cell (2)
	Center (2)
	CFO (3)
	chair (85)
	Chairperson (139)
	Chalfonte (2)
	change (6)
	chaos (4)
	chaotic (1)
	charge (1)
	charged (3)
	charges (5)
	Charles (1)
	chart (1)
	Charter (3)
	Chauncey (1)
	cheated (2)
	Cheaters (1)
	check (3)
	checked (1)
	Cheryl (3)
	chief (30)
	chief's (5)
	child (1)
	children (2)
	Christian (1)
	Christmas (1)
	Circuit (3)
	cited (1)
	citizen (2)
	citizens (4)
	city (31)
	civil (3)
	civilian (4)
	clarification (1)
	clarify (5)
	clarity (2)
	Claudia (2)

	Index: clear..constitutional
	clear (3)
	Clerk (1)
	clip (1)
	close (2)
	closed (18)
	closely (1)
	closure (1)
	closures (1)
	Club (1)
	co-chair (1)
	cocaine (1)
	Code (3)
	coercion (1)
	Coleman (2)
	collaborate (1)
	collaborated (1)
	combine (1)
	combined (3)
	commander (3)
	comment (3)
	comments (5)
	commission (5)
	commissioner (116)
	commissioners (14)
	commit (1)
	commitment (1)
	committed (1)
	committee (40)
	committees (4)
	communicated (1)
	communication (1)
	communications (4)
	community (21)
	compared (1)
	compel (1)
	compelled (2)
	compelling (1)
	compiles (1)
	complaining (1)
	complaint (8)
	complaints (3)
	complete (1)
	completed (1)
	completes (1)
	complies (1)
	complying (1)
	conceal (1)
	concern (3)
	concerned (2)
	concerns (1)
	conclude (1)
	concluded (1)
	concludes (2)
	conclusion (1)
	concussion (1)
	condolences (1)
	conduct (1)
	conducted (2)
	conference (4)
	confident (1)
	confirm (2)
	confirmed (1)
	confiscating (1)
	conflict (1)
	connect (1)
	connected (2)
	connection (2)
	Conrad (6)
	Conrad's (1)
	conscience (1)
	consequences (1)
	consideration (3)
	consistent (1)
	consists (2)
	constant (1)
	Constantly (1)
	Constitution (2)
	constitutional (1)

	Index: contact..denied
	contact (3)
	contacted (1)
	contacting (1)
	contained (1)
	continue (5)
	continued (2)
	continues (3)
	continuing (2)
	contract (1)
	control (2)
	convenience (2)
	conversation (4)
	conversations (1)
	convey (1)
	cool (1)
	Cooper (5)
	coordinate (1)
	copy (10)
	corporate (11)
	Corporation (7)
	correct (13)
	corrected (1)
	Correction (1)
	Correspondence (3)
	correspondences (1)
	corrupt (1)
	Corsi (1)
	Corsi's (1)
	council (10)
	counsel (18)
	count (3)
	counts (1)
	County (10)
	couple (10)
	Court (6)
	crash (2)
	crashed (2)
	craziness (1)
	crazy (3)
	create (4)
	created (2)
	crime (3)
	crimes (2)
	criminal (3)
	critically (1)
	criticism (1)
	criticize (1)
	curious (2)
	current (4)
	curve (1)
	custody (1)
	cut (2)
	Da'quaine (1)
	daddy (1)
	daily (2)
	damaging (1)
	Darryl (2)
	data (1)
	date (2)
	daughter (3)
	daughters (1)
	Davis (1)
	day (7)
	days (5)
	DC (8)
	DEA (1)
	dead (1)
	deadline (1)
	deadlines (1)
	Dearborn (1)
	dearly (1)
	death (6)
	deceased (1)
	December (2)
	decision (1)
	dedicated (1)
	defendant (5)
	defendant's (1)
	defer (1)
	degree (3)
	Delaware (2)
	delay (1)
	deleting (1)
	demanding (1)
	denial (1)
	denied (3)

	Index: Denise..DPOA
	Denise (1)
	deny (1)
	Deora (1)
	department (33)
	department's (4)
	departments (4)
	depend (1)
	deplete (1)
	depleting (1)
	Deputy (4)
	describe (1)
	descriptions (1)
	deserve (2)
	deserved (1)
	desk-level (1)
	destroyed (2)
	detail (6)
	detailed (2)
	details (1)
	detectives (2)
	Detroit (46)
	Detroiters (1)
	devastated (1)
	developed (1)
	Devonte (2)
	devotion (1)
	Dewaelsche (143)
	Dexter (1)
	diagnosed (2)
	die (1)
	difference (2)
	difficult (1)
	dignity (1)
	diligently (1)
	direct (1)
	directed (2)
	directive (1)
	Director (3)
	disagreement (1)
	disciplinary (6)
	discipline (5)
	discretion (1)
	discuss (1)
	discussed (4)
	discussion (19)
	discussions (2)
	dispatched (1)
	displays (1)
	disqualifications (1)
	disqualified (5)
	disqualify (2)
	disregarded (1)
	disrupted (2)
	disrupting (2)
	distress (1)
	district (4)
	disturbance (1)
	doctor (1)
	document (1)
	documentation (1)
	documenting (1)
	documents (2)
	dollar (2)
	dollars (6)
	domestic (2)
	dope (2)
	DP (1)
	DPD (36)
	Dpd's (9)
	DPOA (1)

	Index: DPS..fact
	DPS (1)
	draft (2)
	Drew (5)
	drive (2)
	driven (1)
	driving (7)
	drug (1)
	drugs (1)
	due (6)
	duties (1)
	duty (1)
	Dyke (1)
	earlier (1)
	ears (1)
	Eaton (2)
	economic (1)
	eff (1)
	effective (1)
	efficiencies (1)
	efficient (3)
	effing (1)
	effort (1)
	ego (1)
	eighth (1)
	elected (4)
	electronic (3)
	electronically (1)
	elite (1)
	email (3)
	emailed (1)
	emails (1)
	employees (6)
	encouraged (1)
	end (1)
	ended (1)
	ending (1)
	ends (1)
	enforcement (8)
	engage (1)
	engagement (1)
	English (1)
	Enrique (1)
	ensure (2)
	enter (1)
	entered (1)
	enumeration (1)
	equipment (1)
	equity (1)
	Eric (6)
	error (1)
	ethical (1)
	Ethics (1)
	Eva (1)
	event (1)
	eventuality (1)
	eventually (1)
	everyone's (1)
	eviction (1)
	evidence (1)
	evident (1)
	Ewing (1)
	ex- (1)
	ex-offenders (1)
	exact (1)
	examine (1)
	examples (2)
	excuse (4)
	excused (5)
	executive (5)
	exercise (1)
	exhaustive (1)
	expansion (1)
	expect (1)
	expected (1)
	expects (1)
	expenditures (4)
	experienced (3)
	expired (1)
	explain (1)
	explains (1)
	explore (2)
	exposed (1)
	exposures (1)
	expressed (2)
	extensive (2)
	extra (1)
	extraordinarily (2)
	eyed (1)
	faced (1)
	facial (4)
	facility (1)
	facing (1)
	fact (4)

	Index: factor..funds
	factor (1)
	facts (3)
	factual (1)
	fake (2)
	fall (1)
	falls (1)
	false (1)
	family (3)
	famous (1)
	fashion (1)
	fatal (2)
	fatally (1)
	father (5)
	father's (1)
	favor (12)
	favorability (5)
	favorable (1)
	FBI (1)
	fear (1)
	February (15)
	federal (2)
	federally (1)
	Feds (1)
	feel (4)
	feeling (2)
	Felicia (1)
	felon (1)
	felony (1)
	felt (1)
	fentanyl (2)
	figure (1)
	file (1)
	filed (1)
	filled (2)
	filling (1)
	final (1)
	finally (2)
	finance (3)
	financial (2)
	find (1)
	finding (1)
	findings (2)
	fine (1)
	finish (2)
	finished (1)
	fiscal (27)
	fled (2)
	flood (1)
	floor (1)
	focused (1)
	FOIA (1)
	folks (1)
	follow (3)
	follow-up (2)
	foot (1)
	footage (4)
	force (3)
	forced (1)
	Forfeiture (4)
	forged (1)
	forget (1)
	forgotten (1)
	form (3)
	formally (1)
	formation (1)
	formed (2)
	forthcoming (1)
	forum (1)
	forward (2)
	forwarded (1)
	Foster (2)
	foul (1)
	found (4)
	Frances (12)
	Frank (5)
	FRC (1)
	Freedom (1)
	Freeway (1)
	Friday (2)
	Fridja (1)
	friends (5)
	Fries (20)
	front (2)
	frustrated (1)
	FTES (1)
	fulfilled (1)
	full (6)
	full-time (3)
	fund (20)
	funded (4)
	funds (12)

	Index: funniest..hell
	funniest (1)
	furnish (1)
	future (2)
	FYI (1)
	gain (1)
	gangsta (2)
	gangster (1)
	Gardner (1)
	GARNIER (62)
	gating (4)
	Gatson (11)
	general (6)
	generated (1)
	geofencing (1)
	Geosystem (1)
	get all (3)
	girl (4)
	give (8)
	giving (1)
	glad (1)
	Glock (1)
	Gloria (1)
	God (3)
	God-fearing (1)
	godfather (2)
	good (26)
	goods (2)
	governance (1)
	government (1)
	graceful (1)
	gracefully (1)
	Grand (2)
	Grandma (1)
	grant (6)
	granted (1)
	grants (6)
	grass (1)
	great (15)
	greater (1)
	greatest (2)
	grew (1)
	grid (3)
	guardian (1)
	guess (1)
	guessing (1)
	gun (4)
	guns (5)
	guys (7)
	hacked (1)
	hacker (1)
	hackers (1)
	hacks (1)
	half (5)
	half-time (1)
	Hall (3)
	hand (1)
	handled (1)
	hands (1)
	Hanson (1)
	happen (4)
	happened (5)
	happening (2)
	happily (1)
	happy (2)
	harassment (1)
	hard (4)
	harmful (1)
	hats (2)
	Hayes (1)
	He'll (1)
	head (3)
	headquarters (1)
	health (6)
	hear (1)
	heard (2)
	hearing (9)
	Hearn (1)
	heart (1)
	Height (1)
	held (1)
	Helen (1)
	hell (2)

	Index: helped..interesting
	helped (1)
	helpful (1)
	Henry (1)
	hey (1)
	hidden (1)
	hiding (1)
	high (3)
	high-level (3)
	highest (1)
	Hiller (1)
	hiring (5)
	history (2)
	hitting (1)
	hoc (4)
	hold (2)
	holding (1)
	Holmes (1)
	home (5)
	homeless (1)
	homes (1)
	Homicide (1)
	homicides (3)
	honey (1)
	Honorable (4)
	honored (1)
	honors (1)
	hope (4)
	hoping (2)
	hospital (2)
	hosted (1)
	hosting (1)
	hot (2)
	hotter (1)
	hour (1)
	hours (2)
	house (6)
	housing (1)
	Houston (2)
	HR (1)
	huge (1)
	human (1)
	humanity (1)
	humor (1)
	Hunter (1)
	hurry (1)
	hurt (1)
	hurting (1)
	ICE (5)
	iced (1)
	idea (1)
	identify (1)
	II (1)
	illness (1)
	immigration (2)
	impairment (2)
	important (3)
	imposed (1)
	improve (1)
	improvements (1)
	Inappropriate (1)
	incident (6)
	include (3)
	included (1)
	including (3)
	incoming (1)
	incorrect (1)
	increase (4)
	increased (2)
	increasing (1)
	incriminating (2)
	indication (1)
	individual (4)
	individuals (3)
	infant (1)
	inform (1)
	information (9)
	informed (2)
	infractions (1)
	initiative (2)
	initiatives (2)
	injure (1)
	injured (1)
	injuries (1)
	injuring (1)
	injury (1)
	inmate (3)
	innocent (1)
	innovative (1)
	input (1)
	inquiries (2)
	inside (5)
	intelligent (3)
	intentions (1)
	interacting (1)
	interesting (1)

	Index: internal..left
	internal (5)
	internally (1)
	interpreters (1)
	interrogations (1)
	intervene (1)
	interviews (3)
	intimidation (1)
	introduction (1)
	investigate (2)
	investigating (1)
	investigation (8)
	investigations (3)
	investigative (1)
	investigator (5)
	investigator's (1)
	investigators (5)
	invocation (1)
	involved (2)
	Isaac (1)
	issue (4)
	issued (7)
	issues (2)
	item (4)
	items (5)
	Ivey (14)
	Jackson (15)
	Jail (2)
	James (1)
	Jawana (2)
	Jessica (1)
	Jihad (1)
	Jimmy (2)
	job (14)
	jobs (2)
	John (3)
	Johnson (1)
	Jones (27)
	Jonya (1)
	Joshua (1)
	Jr (1)
	Juanita (3)
	judge (5)
	July (3)
	jump (1)
	June (2)
	jurisdiction (2)
	justice (8)
	Justin (1)
	Katrina (1)
	keeping (1)
	kidnapping (2)
	kill (1)
	killed (1)
	killing (1)
	kilos (1)
	Kim (1)
	kind (2)
	kindest (1)
	kindly (1)
	kinds (1)
	knew (3)
	knowledge (1)
	lady (2)
	landlord (2)
	language (1)
	laptop (1)
	large (2)
	Lashonda (1)
	lastly (1)
	latest (1)
	Lavish (1)
	law (4)
	law-abiding (1)
	lawsuit (1)
	lead (1)
	leaders (1)
	leadership (1)
	learn (2)
	lease (1)
	leave (5)
	leaves (1)
	leaving (1)
	led (1)
	Lee (1)
	left (2)

	Index: legal..meeting
	legal (1)
	legendary (1)
	legitimacy (1)
	lengthy (1)
	letter (3)
	level (2)
	license (5)
	Lieutenant (2)
	lieutenant's (3)
	life (4)
	light (1)
	limitation (1)
	limited (1)
	lines (1)
	linked (1)
	list (3)
	listed (1)
	listen (2)
	lists (1)
	literally (1)
	litigation (6)
	Littlefield (3)
	live (5)
	lives (2)
	local (1)
	located (4)
	location (2)
	Lockhart (1)
	long (3)
	long-term (1)
	longer (2)
	looked (3)
	loop (1)
	Lord (1)
	lost (1)
	lot (12)
	love (4)
	loved (1)
	Lydia (1)
	mad (2)
	Madam (55)
	made (17)
	mailbox (1)
	maintain (1)
	major (5)
	majority (7)
	make (24)
	maker (3)
	making (2)
	male (2)
	Mallet (15)
	Mallett (1)
	man (7)
	man's (1)
	management (1)
	manager (3)
	mandate (1)
	manner (1)
	mapping (1)
	marathon (1)
	March (11)
	Marie (1)
	marijuana (1)
	Mark (2)
	Mary (2)
	Mathis (1)
	matrix (2)
	matter (6)
	maximum (6)
	mayor (9)
	Mccaroll (4)
	Mccarroll (4)
	MCL (2)
	means (3)
	measurable (1)
	measures (2)
	media (2)
	medical (2)
	Medics (2)
	meet (4)
	meeting (35)

	Index: meetings..November
	meetings (16)
	member (4)
	member's (1)
	members (15)
	memorandum (1)
	men (3)
	mental (7)
	mention (1)
	mentioned (4)
	merciful (1)
	messages (3)
	met (2)
	Metro (1)
	Mia (2)
	mic (4)
	Michael (2)
	Michelle (1)
	Michigan (4)
	Mile (4)
	million (16)
	mindset (1)
	mine (1)
	minute (3)
	minutes (9)
	missing (2)
	mobile (1)
	modify (1)
	mold (1)
	Monday (1)
	money (4)
	month (4)
	months (8)
	Moore (1)
	morning (5)
	Morris (17)
	mother (2)
	motion (58)
	motive (1)
	mounting (1)
	move (7)
	moved (12)
	moving (2)
	multiple (1)
	murder (4)
	murders (1)
	NACOLE (2)
	names (4)
	narcotics (2)
	narrative (1)
	nature (2)
	Nazarko (18)
	necessarily (1)
	neck (1)
	needed (4)
	nefarious (1)
	negotiated (1)
	neighborhood (1)
	neighborhoods (2)
	neighbors (1)
	nervous (1)
	neutral (1)
	newly (1)
	news (2)
	NIBIN (1)
	nice (1)
	night (2)
	nobody's (1)
	nominating (1)
	non-custody (1)
	non-fatal (1)
	non-personnel (1)
	non-sworn (1)
	non-uniform (3)
	nosy (1)
	note (1)
	noted (2)
	notes (2)
	noticed (1)
	notices (1)
	notifications (2)
	November (1)

	Index: number..phone
	number (15)
	numbers (4)
	numerous (2)
	Oakland (2)
	oath (1)
	obligated (1)
	observed (1)
	occur (1)
	occurred (2)
	OCI (11)
	October (5)
	odd (1)
	ODFS (1)
	offenders (1)
	offering (2)
	office (8)
	officer (18)
	officers (35)
	official (2)
	officials (1)
	older (1)
	ongoing (6)
	online (2)
	open (8)
	operating (9)
	operation (6)
	operations (12)
	opportunity (4)
	Opposed (10)
	optimistic (1)
	option (1)
	oral (1)
	order (9)
	ordinance (1)
	osteoarthritis (2)
	outcome (2)
	Overholm (1)
	oversight (2)
	overspend (1)
	overspending (1)
	overspent (1)
	overview (3)
	p.m. (10)
	packet (2)
	paper (1)
	Parish (23)
	Parks (1)
	parliamentarian (11)
	part (8)
	part-time (2)
	partners (2)
	partnership (1)
	passenger (1)
	past (2)
	patrol (2)
	Paul (5)
	pay (2)
	Peace (1)
	pending (1)
	people (17)
	percent (15)
	period (1)
	permission (2)
	person (5)
	personal (1)
	personally (1)
	personnel (5)
	perspective (1)
	pertained (1)
	Petillo (1)
	petitions (1)
	phenomenal (1)
	phone (8)

	Index: pick..provided
	pick (1)
	picture (1)
	pictures (1)
	pills (1)
	pipeline (1)
	place (6)
	plan (1)
	planets (1)
	planning (1)
	play (4)
	played (1)
	playing (1)
	pleasure (4)
	podium (2)
	point (4)
	pointed (1)
	poised (1)
	police (60)
	policies (4)
	policing (2)
	policy (6)
	polite (1)
	politeness (1)
	pool (1)
	position (7)
	positions (14)
	possessing (1)
	possibly (1)
	post (1)
	postage (1)
	posted (4)
	posting (2)
	postings (2)
	postponed (1)
	posts (1)
	potentially (1)
	power (1)
	powers (1)
	pray (3)
	prayers (1)
	precinct (10)
	precincts (1)
	Precious (1)
	prefer (1)
	prepare (1)
	prepared (1)
	present (22)
	presentation (10)
	presentations (1)
	presented (1)
	presents (2)
	preserves (1)
	President (1)
	prevent (1)
	Preventing (1)
	previous (2)
	previously (2)
	printed (2)
	prior (1)
	privilege (1)
	problem (2)
	procedural (1)
	procedures (6)
	process (6)
	profile (1)
	program (3)
	progress (2)
	prolonging (1)
	promoted (1)
	pronounced (2)
	proper (2)
	properly (3)
	properties (1)
	property (1)
	propose (3)
	proposed (3)
	Prosecutor's (2)
	Prostitution (1)
	protect (1)
	protecting (1)
	protocol (1)
	protract (1)
	protracted (3)
	proud (3)
	provide (2)
	provided (4)

	Index: Providence..Reporting
	Providence (1)
	providing (1)
	Prowl (1)
	public (14)
	public's (2)
	pull (1)
	pulled (2)
	Purify (1)
	pursuant (2)
	pursue (1)
	push (1)
	pushed (1)
	put (12)
	putting (1)
	Q1 (1)
	Q2 (1)
	qualify (1)
	quality (1)
	quarter (1)
	quarterly (1)
	quarters (2)
	question (19)
	questions (23)
	quick (4)
	radio (1)
	raid (5)
	raising (1)
	random (1)
	raped (1)
	Rapids (1)
	rate (2)
	Rayna (7)
	reach (1)
	reaches (1)
	read (3)
	reads (1)
	ready (2)
	real (3)
	reason (3)
	Rebecca (1)
	receive (2)
	received (4)
	receives (2)
	recently (1)
	recess (1)
	reciting (1)
	reckless (3)
	recklessly (2)
	recognition (4)
	recommendation (2)
	recommendations (2)
	record (8)
	recording (1)
	recovered (1)
	recovering (1)
	rectify (1)
	redacted (1)
	reduce (2)
	refer (1)
	reference (1)
	referring (1)
	reflect (1)
	reflects (2)
	regard (1)
	register (1)
	registered (2)
	Regrettably (1)
	reiterating (1)
	rejected (1)
	related (3)
	relates (3)
	relationship (2)
	relative (1)
	released (1)
	remains (2)
	remediation (1)
	Remember (1)
	remind (1)
	reminder (1)
	remove (1)
	removed (1)
	repeatedly (1)
	repeating (2)
	report (14)
	reported (3)
	Reporter (1)
	Reporting (1)

	Index: reports..secretary
	reports (2)
	represent (1)
	representative (1)
	representatives (1)
	request (24)
	requested (10)
	requesting (5)
	requests (1)
	require (1)
	required (5)
	requirement (1)
	requires (1)
	resident (1)
	resolution (5)
	resolved (2)
	resources (3)
	respect (2)
	respectfully (1)
	respects (1)
	respond (3)
	responded (3)
	response (7)
	responses (4)
	responsibility (2)
	responsiveness (1)
	rest (1)
	restraining (2)
	result (1)
	resulted (2)
	retain (1)
	retired (1)
	retirements (2)
	return (1)
	reveal (2)
	revenue (2)
	revenues (5)
	review (11)
	reviewed (2)
	reviews (2)
	revise (1)
	revised (1)
	revision (1)
	revisions (2)
	revisit (1)
	revoked (2)
	ribs (1)
	rights (3)
	risks (1)
	River (1)
	robberies (1)
	Roberson (4)
	rogue (1)
	role (1)
	roll (10)
	Ron (1)
	Ronald (1)
	room (4)
	root (1)
	Rosa (1)
	row (1)
	Rue (1)
	run (2)
	running (1)
	Russell (4)
	sad (1)
	sadly (1)
	safe (2)
	safer (1)
	safety (3)
	salaries (2)
	sat (1)
	satisfaction (1)
	Saturday (1)
	save (1)
	saver (1)
	saving (3)
	Scanners (1)
	scared (1)
	scene (4)
	schedule (1)
	scheduled (1)
	School (1)
	schoolteacher (2)
	Scotty (1)
	screen (1)
	search (2)
	seat (2)
	seated (1)
	second-degree (1)
	seconded (12)
	seconds (1)
	secretary (11)

	Index: section..spent
	section (3)
	seek (1)
	seeking (1)
	selected (2)
	self-interest (1)
	selling (1)
	send (2)
	sending (1)
	senior (2)
	seniority (1)
	sense (2)
	sensitive (1)
	sentiment (1)
	September (1)
	Sergeant (5)
	servant (1)
	servants (1)
	served (2)
	service (3)
	services (6)
	session (18)
	set (13)
	seventh (2)
	shake (1)
	shape (1)
	share (3)
	shared (2)
	sharing (1)
	sheet (1)
	Sheffield (2)
	shell (1)
	shelter (1)
	Sheriff's (1)
	Sherman (1)
	shifting (1)
	shooting (1)
	shootings (1)
	short (2)
	shot (4)
	shot- (1)
	shot-spotter (6)
	shot-up (1)
	showed (1)
	showering (1)
	showing (4)
	shows (2)
	shut (1)
	side (1)
	sign (1)
	signature (1)
	silence (2)
	similar (2)
	simple (2)
	simply (1)
	single-motor (1)
	sir (5)
	sister (2)
	sisters (1)
	sit (2)
	sitting (3)
	situation (2)
	situations (1)
	sixth (1)
	slide (9)
	slightly (1)
	small (1)
	Smith (18)
	Smith's (1)
	smoothly (1)
	snatched (1)
	so- (1)
	social (2)
	solutions (1)
	someone's (1)
	son (3)
	sons (1)
	sort (3)
	sorts (1)
	sounds (3)
	Southfield (1)
	speak (9)
	speaker (16)
	speakers (5)
	speaking (4)
	special (9)
	specific (3)
	speed (2)
	speeding (3)
	spend (2)
	spending (1)
	spent (2)

	Index: spine..talking
	spine (2)
	spirit (1)
	split (1)
	spoil (3)
	spoken (2)
	spot (1)
	spotter (1)
	spring (1)
	staff (7)
	staffed (1)
	stagnant (1)
	stance (1)
	standard (4)
	standing (1)
	start (4)
	started (3)
	starting (1)
	starts (2)
	state (9)
	stated (3)
	statement (3)
	states (1)
	station (1)
	stationed (2)
	status (3)
	stepfather (1)
	Stonegarden (1)
	stop (3)
	stops (1)
	story (3)
	straighten (1)
	Strategic (1)
	streams (1)
	street (5)
	strengthen (1)
	strictly (1)
	strong (4)
	struck (1)
	Stuckless (1)
	stuff (9)
	subcommittee (2)
	subject (1)
	submissions (2)
	submit (1)
	submits (5)
	subpoena (1)
	substance (1)
	succumbed (1)
	SUD (2)
	suddenly (1)
	sue (1)
	sugar (1)
	suggesting (1)
	suggestion (1)
	suits (1)
	summary (2)
	Sunday (1)
	superiors (1)
	supervising (3)
	supervision (1)
	supervisor (1)
	supplemental (6)
	support (10)
	supported (6)
	supportive (1)
	supposed (1)
	Supreme (1)
	surety (1)
	surrender (1)
	surveillance (1)
	surveilling (2)
	suspect (6)
	suspect's (1)
	suspected (2)
	suspects (2)
	Suspects' (1)
	suspended (2)
	sustainability (2)
	sustained (1)
	switch (1)
	sworn (1)
	system (3)
	tab (3)
	table (1)
	tablet (1)
	Tacoma (1)
	tactics (1)
	takes (3)
	taking (10)
	Taleb (3)
	talk (6)
	talked (2)
	talking (5)

	Index: tased..unfortunate
	tased (1)
	Taura (1)
	Taylor (1)
	tea (1)
	teachers (1)
	team (4)
	tear (1)
	technology (1)
	telecommunications (1)
	telling (1)
	temporary (2)
	tenure (1)
	Teresa (1)
	terrible (1)
	terrorize (1)
	Thanksgiving (1)
	Theft (2)
	thing (8)
	things (10)
	Thirdly (1)
	Thomas (1)
	thought (1)
	thoughtful (1)
	threatened (1)
	Three-minute (1)
	threw (1)
	thrown (1)
	Thursday (3)
	tickets (1)
	time (25)
	timeline (5)
	timelines (1)
	timely (1)
	times (2)
	timing (1)
	tired (1)
	Tireman (1)
	today (20)
	today's (2)
	tolerated (1)
	Toll (2)
	tonight (2)
	tonight's (1)
	tool (1)
	tools (2)
	total (13)
	touch (1)
	tow (3)
	toxic (1)
	toxins (1)
	track (1)
	tracked (1)
	tradition (1)
	traffic (8)
	tragedy (1)
	training (6)
	transcript (1)
	translation (1)
	transported (1)
	trap (1)
	trapped (1)
	traps (1)
	travel (3)
	travels (1)
	trial (1)
	trust (2)
	Tuesday (2)
	turn (3)
	turned (1)
	turning (3)
	TV (2)
	two-thirds (3)
	type (3)
	typos (1)
	Tyson (1)
	ultimately (1)
	unable (2)
	unanimous (1)
	unanimously (2)
	unavailable (1)
	undercover (2)
	understand (2)
	understanding (3)
	Underwood (10)
	unethical (1)
	unfinished (1)
	unfortunate (1)

	Index: uniform..Woods
	uniform (4)
	uniformed (1)
	unimpeded (1)
	union (2)
	unit (2)
	units' (1)
	unresponsive (1)
	unsolicited (1)
	upcoming (2)
	update (2)
	updated (1)
	updates (2)
	uphold (1)
	uplift (1)
	upset (1)
	usurped (1)
	utilization (2)
	utilizing (3)
	vacancies (5)
	vacant (3)
	values (1)
	Van (1)
	Vanessa (3)
	vehicle (10)
	vehicles (1)
	vent (1)
	Veronica (1)
	vests (1)
	veto (1)
	vibrant (1)
	Vice (2)
	victim (6)
	victim's (3)
	victims (4)
	video (3)
	view (5)
	violate (1)
	violated (2)
	violating (1)
	violation (4)
	violations (3)
	violence (2)
	violent (1)
	virtually (1)
	visibility (1)
	visit (1)
	vitally (1)
	VOCA (1)
	voice (1)
	voicemail (1)
	vote (9)
	voted (3)
	votes (3)
	voucher (1)
	wages (1)
	waiting (1)
	walk (1)
	Wallet (1)
	Wallet's (1)
	wanted (11)
	War (1)
	warehouse (1)
	warrant (2)
	warrants (1)
	watch (1)
	watched (1)
	watching (2)
	Watts (17)
	Wayne (8)
	ways (1)
	weapons (4)
	Wednesday (2)
	week (18)
	week's (3)
	weekend (1)
	weekly (2)
	weeks (2)
	wellness (1)
	whereabouts (2)
	William (1)
	Williams (18)
	win (2)
	Wingswept (1)
	withdrawn (1)
	woman (3)
	wondering (5)
	Woods (57)

	Index: words..Zoom
	words (2)
	work (13)
	worked (3)
	workers (1)
	working (9)
	works (1)
	world (2)
	worse (1)
	Worthy (1)
	wound (1)
	Wright (5)
	writing (2)
	wrong (3)
	wrote (1)
	y'all (14)
	yay (3)
	year (45)
	year's (1)
	Year-to-date (1)
	years (11)
	yesterday (1)
	yield (1)
	young (6)
	Young's (1)
	youngsters (1)
	Zoom (6)



